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3The appeal of Mr. Wacpis .Ahmad rcsubmilLcd 

loday by Sardar Muhammad Waqar Advocalc. Il is fixed for 

preiiminai'y hearing before toui'ing Single Dench al A.Abad 

on 221.07,2024. Parcha lA'shi given Ui line counsel Ibi' ihc 

appellani.
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Before the Service Tribunal Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Pcshawal*

Respected Sir,

As per objection pointed oui by Office Assistant of this I'ribun -il following
objections were raised;-

1. According.to sub-rule 4 ofrulc-6 of fChybcr-Pakhtunkhwa Service fribunal Rules 

1974 respondent No. 1 & 5 are un-necessary/.improper parties in light of the rules 

and on the written direction of tlie Worthy Chairman the above mentioned 

respondents be deleted/ struck out.

2. Appeal has not been flagged/ marked with annexures marks.

3. Copies of charge sheet, statement of allegations, show cause notice, cnqiiiiv' report 

and replies thereto are not attached with the.appeal be placed on it.
4., Annexures of the appeal are not in sequence

5. Three copies/sets of the appeal along with annexures i.e. complete in nil respect 

for tribunal and one for each respondent may also be submitted with the appeal.

{

f
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r ■

In compliance of the directions, above mentioned objections are hereby removed, but 

for removal of objection No. 3 appellant has submitted application before departraciii 
for getting copy of charge sheet etc but unfortunately except show cause notice (copy 

is attached), rest of the copies were not provided by the department, hence objcelion 

cannot be removed as whole due to non-.provision of said docuniems by the 

department.' Furthermore first page of the appeal which was attested by the Ofnee 

Assistant of the Tribunal is also attached with the corrected memorandum ol‘ appeal.

• i

SARDAR MUHAMMAD WAQAR 
Advocate High Court Abhoiiabad. 

Contact No. 0345-9596898
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The appeal of Mr. Waqas Ahmad received today i.e on 04.07,2024 is 

incomplete on the following score which is returned to the counsel for the
appellant for completion and resubmission within 15 days.

According to sub-ruie-4 of rule-6 of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Service 

Iribunal rules 1974 respondent no. l&S are un-necessary/improper 
parties, in light of the rules ibid and on the written direction of the 
Worthy Chairman the above mentioned respondent number be 
deieted/struck out from the list of respondent.

2^Appeal has not been flagged/marked with annexures marks.
(P Copies of charge sheet, statement of allegations, show cause notice,

enquiry report and replies thereto are not attached with the appeal be 
alaced on it.

4- Annexures of the appeal are not in sequence be annexed serial 
mentioned in the memo of appeal,
friree copies/sets of the appeal along with annexures i,e. complete in 

ail respect for Iribunal and one for each respondent may also be 
submitted with the appeal,

/lnst./2024/i<PST,

wise as

No,

. /2024-

^ ASI.STA!NiT V 
SERVICE TRIBUNAL, 

KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA 
PESHAWAR.

Sardar Muhammad Waqaf Adv.
High Court A.Abad.
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BEFORE THE SERVICE TRIBUNAL. KHYBIilR
PAKHTUNKItWA PESHAWAR

Service. Appeal No. ^ /2024

Waqas Ahmad son of Muhammad Zulfiqar, resident of Jhafiar Tehsil & 
District Abbottabad, Ex-Constable No.l041 District Police Abbottabad.

...APPELLANT

VERSUS

Inspector General of Police, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Peshawar & others.

...JIESPONDENTS
SERVICE APPEAL

INDEX

5.# Description Page a Annexures
Service appeal alongwith affidaviti. lto9
Copy of impugned order dated 
07/04/2023 alongvvith.show cause notice

10 to 10 “A”2.

etc
Copies of criminal appeal No. 27-A/2023 
& 28-A/2023 alongwith judgments dated 
14/05/2024

3. 11 to 65 “B”&“C”

“D”Copy of order MCTC Dated 25/01/2023
Copy of departmental appeal and order 
No. 3060 dated 06/06/2024-alongwith 
application

66 to 984.
“E” & “F”99 to 1035.

“G”104 to 105Copy of departmental appeal6.
“H”106Copy of FIR7.

107Wakalatnama8.

APPELLANT• • •
Through

Dated: 03/07/2024

(Sardar.Muhammad Waqar) 

Advocate High Court, Abbottabad 
Contact No. 0345-9596898

S<iKia7 
f^votaXt 

^»mXaet +9e St!S ^Sf6S9g■ a
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BEFORE THE SERVICE TRIBUNAL, KHYBER 

■ PAKHTUNKHWA PESHAWAR
r
\''

i^emce ko. --.non . ■
I'

Waqas Ahmad son of Muhanimad ^ulfrqar, resident of Jhdif^ Tehsil & 
District Abbottaljjad, Ex-Constable No.1041 District Polipe Abbottabad.

APPELLANT

VERSUS Oiary No.

>1. ' Govt, of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa through Secretary Home and Tribal 
Affairs Department, Peshawar.

-^-2. Inspector General of Police, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Peshawar.
3. Regional Police Officer (RPO), Hazara Region, Abbottabad.
4. District Police Officer, Abbottabad.

'rS. District Accounts Officer, Abbottabad.

RESPONDENTS

A..
SERVICE APPEAL UNDER SECTION 4 OF •
SERVICE TRIBUNAL ACT, 1-974, FOR 

DECLARATION TO THE EFFECT .THAT 

ORDER BEARING OB NO.s's DATED ‘ 

07/04/2023 ISSUED BY RESPONDENT N0.4, 
WHEREBY, THE APPELLANT WAS . 
AWARDED _TIffi MAJOR PUNISHMENT OF 

DISMISSAL FROM SERVICE ON THE BASIS 

OF INVOLVEMENT IN A CBJMINAL CASE 

FIR NOT65, DATED 17/02/2022 UNDER 

SECTION 302/34 PPG READ WITH SECTION 

15-AA KPK,- POLICE STATIONMIRPUR,
fiA';

, ;■♦
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t BEFORE THE SERVICE IMBUNAL. KHYBER
PAKHTUNKHWA PESHAWAR

Service Appeal No. ^ /2024

Waqas Atunad son of Muhammad Zulfiqar, resident of Jhaffar Tehsil & 
District Abbottabad, Ex-Constable No. 1041 District Police Abbottabad.

...APPELLANT

VERSUS

1. Inspector General of Police, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Peshawar.
2. Regional Police Officer (RPO), Hazara Region, Abbottabad.
3. District Police Officer, Abbottabad.

....RESPONDENTS

SERVICE APPEAL UNDER SECTION 4 OF 

SERVICE TRIBUNAL ACT, 1974, FOR 

DECLARATION TO THE EFFECT THAT 

ORDER BEARING OB N0.88 DATED 

07/04/2023 ISSUED BY RESPONDENT N0.3, 

WHEREBY, THE APPELLANT WAS 

AWARDED THE MAJOR PUNISHMENT OF 

DISMISSAL FROM SERVICE ON THE BASIS 

OF INVOLVEMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE 

FIR N0.165, DATED 17/02/2022 UNDER 

SECTION 302/34 PPC READ WITH SECTION 

15-AA KPK, POLICE STATION MIRPUR, 
DISTRICT ABBOTTABAD AND AGAINST 

THE ORDER NO. 3060/PA DATED 06/06/2024
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PASSED BY RESPONDENT NO. i ARE
ILLEGAL, UNLAWFUL, AGAINST THE LAW, 
FACTS, CIRCUMSTANCES. PERVERSE, 
ARBITRARY, WITHOUT LAWFUL
JURISDICTION, AGAINST THE RULES AND 

POLICY ON THE SUBJECT AND 

INEFFECTIVE UPON THE RIGHTS OF THE
APPELLANT.

PRAYER; ON ACCEPTANCE OF THE 

INSTANT SERVICE APPEAL, THE 

IMPUGNED DISMISSAL ORDER DATED 

07/04/2023 ISSUED BY RESPONDENT N0.3 & 

ORDER NO. 3060/PA DATED 06/06/2024 

PASSED BY :RESP0NDENT NO. 2 MAY 

GRACIOUSLY BE SET-ASIDE AND THE 

APPELLANT MAY KINDLY BE REINSTATED 

IN SERVICE WITH ALL BACK BENEFITS IN 

THE INTEREST OF JUSTICE. ANY OTHER 

RELIEF WHICH THIS HONOURABLE 

TRIBUNAL DEEM APPROPRIATE IN THE 

CIRCUMSTANCES OF THE CASE MAY ALSO 

BE GRANTED TO THE APPELLANT.

Respectfully Sheweth:-

The facts forming the .background of service appeal are

arrayed as under;-

1. That the appellant got:appointment as Constable in 

District Police Abbottabad.
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That the appellant has served the department with 

honesty, dignity and for the utmost satisfection of 

his superiors and has left no stone unturned.

2.

3. That the appellant was wrongly involved in a 

criminal case registered vide FIR No.l65, dated 

17/02/2022 under Section .302/34 PPC read with 

Section 15-AA KPK, Police Station Mirpur 

Abbottabad.

That after awarding jpunishment, the respondent 

No.3 constituted inquiry, committee into the matter 

of appellant and without giving opportunity of 

hearing on the-basis of so-^called inquiry awarded 

major punishment of dismissal from service to the 

appellant vide order OB No.88, dated 07/04/2023. 
Copy of impugned order dated 07/04/2023 

alongwith show cause notice etc are annexed as 

Annexure “A”.

4.

That in the meanwhile, the appellant being 

aggriev^ from his conviction and sentenced 

awarded vide judgment dated 25/01/2023 by the 

court of learned Additional Sessions -Judge-YI, 
Abbottabad, filed the Criminal Appeal before the 

Honourable Peshawar High Court Abbottabad 

Bench. The-Honourable Peshawar Hi^ Court 

Abbottabad Bench after hearing the arguments 

set-aside the convictions and sentence .awarded to 

the appellant acquitted the appellant vide judgment 
dated 14/05/2024. Copies of criminal appeal No.

5.
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27-A/2023 & -28-A/2023 alongwitii judgments 

dated 14/05/2024 are .annexed as Annexure “B”,
“C”.

6. That after commencement of trial the appellant 
aiongwith others were convicted under Section 

302-B PPC and sentenced to imprisonment for life 

as Tazeer vide judgment dated 25/01/2023 passed 

by the learned Additional Sessions Judge-VI/Judge 

MCTC Abbottabad. Copy of order MCTC dated 

25/01/2023 is annexed as Annexure “D”.

That after acquittal .from the so-called charges 

leveled against the appellant, the appellant filed 

department^ appeal before the respondent No.2.

7.

8. That the respondent No.2, vide order No.3060/PA 

dated 06/06/2024 disposed off the appeal of the 

appellant being time barred, the order of the said 

appeal was commuiiicated to the appellant on 

29/06/2024. Copy .of .^departments appeS and 

order No. .3060 .dated 06/06/2024 Songwith 

application are annexed as Annexure “E”, “F”.

That, thereafter, the-appellant has also filed an 

appeS before the respondent No.l but the 

grievances of the appellant has not redressed. Copy 

of departmental appeal is annexed as Annexure

9.

“G”.
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10. That feeling aggrieved from die order OB No.88, 

dated 07/04/2023 issued by respondent No.3 and 

order No. 3060 ^dated 06/06/2024 passed by 

respondent No. 2 the appellant seeks indulgence 

of this Honourable Court by filing instant appeal, 
interralia, on die:foUowing grounds;-

GRQUNDS!-

a) That the appellant has unblemished service 

record and has always discharged his duties 

with full of devotion, dedication, honesty 

and for the^satisfaction of his superiors.

b) That the impugned removal/dismissal from 

service order dated 07/04/2023 of 

respondent No.3 .and order No. .3060. dated 

06/06/2024 are illegd, unlawful, perverse, 
arbitrary, -against the law on die subject, 

hence, liable toheset-aside.

That.impugned act of respondentsis.illegal, 
unlawful, vrithout lawful authority, against 
the principle of natural justice, hence, 
ineffectiveiupon the rights of the appellant

c)

d) That, the respondent No.2 has committed a 

grave error by overlooking the material 
available bn record as for as acquittal of die 

appellant finm the so-called criminal case on 

the basis of which the respondent No.3 has 

issued the impugned order of dismissal frem 

service of the appellant.
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e) That infact initially the said criminal
was registered against the unknown 

persons by the complainant (wife of the 

deceased). Later on the appellant was 

charged/involved in the said . case with 

malafide intentions on the part of 

(^mplainant, therefore, the Honourable 

Peshawar High Court Abbottabad Bench 

after perusal of the record available on file 

set-aside the convictions and sentenced and 

acquitted the appellant honourably fiY)m the 

charges leveled against him. Copy of FIR is 

annexed as Annexure “H”.

case

f) That at the time of dismissal from the 

service, the "appellant was confined in 

Judicial Lockup and was not aware about his 

dismissal from service or procedure 

prescribe for filing the appeal agmnst the 

dismissal order, nor the appellant was 

intimated neither was given opportunity of 

-hearing before issuance of the impugned 

dismissal order.

That after - acquittal/setting aside the 

conviction/sentenced awarded to the 

appellant, the -appellant approached to' the 

office of respondent No.3 and inquired 

about his suspension order. The officials of 

the office of respondent No.3 informed the

g)
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r
appellant about :the dismiss^ frdm service, 
tliereafter,-the:appellant filed departmental 
appeal against the impugned order before 

the respondent No.2.
h) That it is worth to note here that, according 

to the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Esta Code 2011 

when a Govt. Servant is honourably 

acquitted in a departmental inqmry or trial in 

court the--period-of absence from duty on 

account of the suspension, dismissal or 

removal from the service has to be treated as 

period spent on-duty. Thus, the impugned 

dismissal .order dated 07/04/2023 of 

respondent No.3 and order in departmental 
appeal are. liable to be set-aside and -the 

appellant is entitled to be reinstated in 

service with all back benefits.

That the appellant is the only bread earner of 

his family and his no other source of 

livelihood and is solely dependent on Ms 

service -in 'the respondent department, 
therefore, he is:entitled to bereinstated.

i)

That the appellant has been dismissed from 

service without following the prescribed 

procedure, without lawful justificarion and 

jurisdiction. Therefore, the impugned order 

of dismissal of-the appellant is liable to be 

set-aside.

j)
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k) That this tribunal should not fold up of its 

hands whilejgranting relief to:the aggrieved 

appellant .as -the -appellant committed no 

offence or.misconduct.

1) That there is no other prompt, -efficacious 

remedy, available to the appellant except the 

instant appeal.

It is, therefore, humbly prayed that on acceptance 

of the instant service appeal, the impugned dismissal 
order dated 07/04/2023-issued by respondent Jio.3 & 

order no. 3060/pa dated 06/06/2024 passed by respondent 

no. 2 may graciously be set-aside and die appellant may 

kindly be-reinstated .in service wth all back benefits in 

the interest of justice. Any other relief which this 

Honourable Tribunal deem appropriate in the 

circumstances of the case :may also be granted to tiie 

appellant.

f* •

..APPELLANT
Through

Dated: 03/07/2024
)4<(u6cate

(Sardar Muhammad Waqar) 
Advocate High Court, Abbottabad 

Contact No. 0345-9596898
VERIFICATION:-

Verified on oath that the contents of-foregoing service appeal are true :and 

correct to the best of our knowledge .and-belief and nothing has been 

concealed therein firom this Honourable tribunal.

...APPELLANT
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BEFORE THE SERVICF TRIBIJNA¥

MKHTUNKHWA PESH a w a p
KHYBER

Service Appeal No. /2024

Waq^ >^ad son of Muhammad Zulfiqar, resident of Jhaffar Tehsil & 
District Abbottabad, Ex-Constable No.1041 District Police Abbottabad.

...APPELLANT

VERSUS

Inspector General of Police. KhyberPakhtunkhwa. Peshawar & others. ‘

RESPONDENTS

SERVICE APPF AT.

AFFIDAVIT

I, Waqas Ahmad son ofMuhammad Zulfiqar, resident of Jhaffar Tehsil & 

District Abbottabad, Ex-Constable NoJ041.District Police Abbottabad, do 

hereby solemnly affirm and declare that the-contents of foregoing service 

appeal are true and correct to the best of my .knowledge and belief and 

nothing has been concealed therein from this Honourable Court.

DEPONENT

c
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v • . ORDER.
/

. '/This ofl'icc order will dispose-off the deparrmeiVuil'enquiry againsl

FC Wriqas .No. i‘Mi. He 'while posled at PS Mirpur, found involved in case IdR No. 

165 dated 17-1)2-2022 U/S 302 ?P(i PS .Mirpur which leads to gross misconduct on hi.s 

part.

'VV.

■iai ■iiS
•h:'

I PIc was issued .with Charge Sheet along with statemen? of allegations by 

Addl; SP- Abbotlabad vide his office Endst; No. 61/ PA dated M i-03-2022 and 

DSP Galiyat was appoinled as Enquiry Oflicer. tic conducted proper dcparlmenlal
enquiiy againsl the delinquent otTvcial and recorded statements of all concerned. After 

conducting, proper departmental enquiry, the Enquiry Ofoccr suhniitted his findings 

wherein allegations have been proved againsl delinquent' olTicial. He'.was is.sued Pinal

Shiow Cau.se Notice. On 25-01,-2023 Additional Session .iudge-IV ..-.bboltahad awarded 

hull sentenced to suffer and undergo life imprisonmeiU U/S 302 (b) Pl’O.' ..h: Ta'zir.

! )A :(

VitI -.
sTr

'U i 2:;
rdi ■.

I 1

i-
i 1 Thcrcrorc, in cxeieise of llie powers vcsicd in the uudci-sigaed Police.

Discipliiiaiy Rules-i975 (Amendcli 2014), I, Umar Tufail, PSP, Dl;drict Police Ofilcer, 

.AbboUabad, as a compcieht au'lhovity, am eonsirained to. award him the major

y-’. ■

purvishntent of DismHsnB from service with immediate effcet.

Order amiouttced.
■ti'

OB No. I

Dated - U - lA

■;

; '.
It'

.)■ i/Folice Offk-cr 
IkioSitabad

Diis^^-irs
A,f J^-hJ!: EE' fsl'lS -

cc.. .
OAST, DPO Office Abbotlabad, aioiigwith Enquiiy containing jj

fop compietion of record.
Pay. Officer.

1. ages

2. 1

' I:- !i! I'f =1.- » * * * iic ■[! >i<, S; .•!: if 4: if. V

0
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i
>
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0'^- THF. ADDL-. SUPERS INTF-NDENT OF POLICE, ABBOTTABAi

/PA, Di’.'SC Ab.boiiahad, tfej;V_/f_£_/2022
■ MNAi;. MHOW CAlTSy. NOTICE 

ririnfiv mn.F. KPK Po!?.?^ R-^^Ses. 1^75 AME'NPED 2014)

''r
1^0. 2 z'

That you FC Waqas ^’o. iU4! have rendered yourself liable to be proceeded under 'R.nle 

IChyber Pakhtunkhwa Pclice Rules .1975 (amended 2f)l4)fyr fcilowing5(3)0/ the 

, mi;:ccinduct:-
That you while posted at PS Mirpur, fotrsd mvolvedl iia ease !P‘R. No. ttiS. 

d}»0;d 17-02-2022 u/s 302 PPC PS Mirpur which lead to gross misconauct on yourj

t by reason of above, as sufficient materia! is placed before the iu’.Cviiri;i,;r.cd -..'.cve.u-'ve 

i- is decided to proceed against you in general Police proceedings v-.-itliout aia of EnLiiiuy 

vlfncer.
That 'lie misconduct on your part is prejudicial to good order of discipline :n uie [''jbee 

f-,!i cc
i hat your vetcation in the police force veil amount to encouragement of A a.-ie 

iiid'scipliue officer in the force.
; bv fakir.g coguizance of the, matter under enqn'ry, the i .ndersigned as (_.ompetent 

under ‘he said Rules, proposes stern action against you by awarding '.'ne or 

of the kind punishments as provided in the Rules.

You me, therefore, called upon to Shew Cause as to why you 

avrordance Police Rule for the misconduct referred ab-ovc.
You shall submit reply to Ihis Show Cause Notice withiu 07 davs ofthc receipt of the 

notice foiling which an ex paite e.ction shall betaken agaiirst yea.
further directed to inibmi the undersigned that whether you wisii to be heard in.

'iliat

‘
•A ->

-I
t

...” a!.hiv-if-/

■ lb n'.ovi
sV.oulil not be dealt in. 5.n

■

(>.
t :

1 •.
1.C

Y'oii are 

y>erson or not.
C);'-’?uricls of action are also enclosed ’•vilir this notice.

/
y. r

Abbottebsid.

r

■

Received by. 

Dated /_ /2022

C^C i

I

I
Prtgc 1 cu'f'i
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• :E OF THE ADDL; gUPEMNTENDENT OF POLI[CE,.ABBQTTABv
’No. '?-*•/ /PA. Dated Abbottabad, theA*'^72Q22

GROUNDS OF ACTION

That you FC Waqas No. 1041 committed following misconduct;-
Thal you while posted zt FS Mirpur, fouad involved in cas; FIR. No. l&S 

dated 17-02-2022 u/s 302 PPC PS Msrpur which Ififid to gross miscoaduct on your 

part.
By reasons of above you have rendered yourself liable to be proceeded under 

Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Police Rules 1975 (amended 2014), hence these grounds of action.

..wA...
.AddS: of Police,

I

I/ C(C
. p

l-f ;

I
'I

\

'*5

i «. .

'

A-
I

i<

j

T

V

Page 2 of 2\ ' \
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aUl jLi >«usl jLa -^f,

{.Charfle sheet/Statement of ariegation.inaurv report and reply)

l(Jlpwt>

15M v-‘:^302/34 f*/ .2^ JV17

^C> ^20?3 ci<i

Charge sheet/Statement of allegation-inqury report and reply

.2^4 05 -; f}yii

0345^296898-:/ibU

-:JV '10417^

c
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f I ABBOTTABAID' BENCH V""' f --I!»
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I

fe'

f
Cr, Appeai No, . -A/2023i /7

r
i(

1. Waqas Ahmed son ofMuhammcid Zulfiqar, resident of Jahafar, Tch,si!
& District Abbottabad.
Abdul Qadeer son of Muhammad Yaqoob, resident of Nagri Bala
Tchsil & District Abbottabad. ■

r •

]
2.

J

3. Muhammad'Imran son of Muhammad Bashir, resident of Badyal, 
. Tehsil &. District Abbottabad, (Now all confined in .Dishict Jail, 

Haripur).
...CONVICT/ AFPETliANTS

■ VERSUS
\[

t.K'
[: ) i; •• The Stale.

2. Sumaira Bibi widow of deceased Dildar, resident of Kasaki, presently 
Jhangi Qazian, Tehsil & District Abbottabad, (complainant).

r

... RESPONDENTS

CASE FIR NO. 165. DATED , 17.02.2022

UNDER SECTION 302/34 .FPC POLICE 

STATION

/■ •'

MIRPUR DISTRICT

ABBOTTABAD.

■ APPEAL; UNDER SECTION 4.10 CR.PC,

AGAINST T'HE IMPUGNED JUDGMEN'l’

•DATED 25.01.2023 PASSED BY LEARNED

!
■ ADDITIONAL SESSIONS JUDGE-VI/ JUbGE

MCTC ABBOTTABAD, WHEIU3BY, THE

s

A
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LEARNED TRIAL COURT CONVICTED Tl-IBi

A?PEI;LANTS:UNDER SECTIOM 302 (B) PPC
i-

I? AND • SENTENCED TO SUl'PER AND '

UNDERGO LIFE IMPRISONMENT AS TAZTR.
■f
■i

I THE, CONVICT/ APPELLANTS SI-L\LL PAY
*

RS. 200,000/- EACH AS COMPENSATION
‘

UNDER SECTION 544-A CR.PC TO 'PHE
r'

LEGAL HEIRS OF DECEASED AND TITE

COMPENSATION SHALL BE RECOVERiABLE

■ UNDER SECTION 544-A (2) CR.PC AS

.ARREARS OF LAND REVENUE OR OWING

TO WANT PROPERTY OF CONVICT/

- APPELLANTS TO UNDERGO SIX MON ITIS SI

IN case OF DEFAULT BY EACH CONAnCT. •

•|

PRAYER: ON ACCEPTANCE OF .INSTANT

APPEAL TITE IMPUGNED JUDGMENT

DATED 25.01.2023 PASSED BY. LEARNEDI iX'

ADDITIONAL SESSIONS JUDGE-VI/ JUDGE.V

MCTC, ABBOTRABAD MAY KINDLY BE
i'

SET-ASIDE AND THE, ' CONATCT/

APPELLANTS BE ACQUITTED. FROM THE •

■ CHARGES LEVELED AGAINST TliEM.

.,U'

f

1 '■
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f£ 1
i •Respectfully Sheweth;-f:

k .

Brief fricls of the case are as under:- r
k ■

1

ii

fi' r
■ That according to the contents of TlR.j the 

complainant Mst. Sumaira T3ib.i widow of the 

deceased Dildar iUias Papu oh 17.02.2022 at about 

- 20;30hours alongwith her brother-in-law namely •

I.

:
:•

i
i

Shaiiq alias Banka son of Rafique reported the

matter to the local plice at ATh, AbboUabad, that

at about 7,00rM her Imsband went to Bazar for

. fetching fruit and milk for children and while3
?

I leaving the house he also took along his 9 . MM
i \

licensed pistol. After 20 or 25 minutes she called

her husband,; who told her that he would return

soon. After a while once she called him agaiii, her 

husband did not atlend the calls. However, alter a 

while once she again made a call on his cellular . 

phone, some unkjtown attended the call and 

inquired that who is she? Whereupon she smd that 

she is the wife of Pappu, to which he again 

inquired that which Pappu and. she told the 

attejrdant tliat Pappu is the owtter of cellular phone 

' ■ then He disclosed that her husband' Ls lying in ATH 

and may have met heart attack. On this she

i

i
Pi

i .

1%:
•-r...

'Z >-IK1^^

1;:m \;'p'
It'31- li

t
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' aiongwith her brother-in-law went to the Hospital 

’ • , where'she found her husband lying dead on

stretcher having fire arm injuries on his bach, and

a.
t

hand on the ’ right side. That her husband had

I enmities and some has murdered him through
V

a firearms. At the raomenl she camiot nominate
ir,

anyone .in particular but want him to. be examined

through autopsy/ postmortem, and charged
■'.r •

^ * * *
unknown for. the commission of offence. Hence,

;

.i'
. the .present case. Copy of FIR is' anncKed as;

Annexure “A”.t-*:£

m e'

i That - later on complainant/ respondent' No. 2
)

recorded her supplementary statement, tinder

2.I <• .

i
Section 164 Cr.PC before the Judicial Magistrate, 

vvherein she charged the present convict/ appellant 

as accused for the commission of olfcilcc.

miI

- That on completion of investigation; complete 

chalian submitted against the convict/ appellants 

an’d they were summoned and after cuinpliance of 

Section 265-C formal charged was, framed against 

convict/ appellants under Section .302/34 PPC, '-to

(

J
I

which they pleaded not guilty.s
■■

< 1

,4#4h
• «

if
If ■

I ^ -3y

&



S'!?• ■ r 5 ^

f;
A. .4; That in support of his case, the prosecution

* • • } '

produced as many as fifteen witnesses and

;
Iff.r .
t'f. I

t'-
recorded accordingly.f:

rI
?

That, after completion of prosecution evidence, the■5.E
;
’

- convict/ appellants were examined under Section

342 Cr.PC, whereiii they professed innocence and

false implication.

*''' . 6- That after hearing the arguments, the learned trial

court' ■ conviclcd and sentenced ilie convicl/
|r

appellants as noted above vi.de impugned judgiiieiit
' 'I

dated 25.01.2023. Attested copy of the judgment
I

dated 25.01.2023 is attached as Annexure “B”.

■r;
v-’’-

7. That the convict/appellants feeling aggrieved witli. 

the judgment of the learned trial court dated 

25.01.2023 approaches this Honourable Court for

r< •
'•5

;4:ir
• 'A

■r;-"1

U:, u./■

1 'I

V setting aside the same, inter-alia, on the following
.v

grounds:-

GROUNDS;:
ig:

(a) That convict/ appellants are innocent and
' '' 1

have been implicated ftilsely in this case and 

the . prosecution. ,ha:v produccrl no

.I
I':

■fe

r
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ludcpcnden!: witnesses 
♦

convict/ appellants witli the commission of 

offence. - '

to connect the,v;
i 3
$

i*;

j' ■ : - (b) That the impugned judgment of learned trial 

.court is suggestive of tite fact that the same 

was pronounced witliout proper vetting of 

the evidence led by the prosecution. The 

conclusion so drawn by the trial court 

rhanifestly shows tliat trial court has by- '
I

passed, the legal principles .settled by the 

superior courts for tlic appreciation of 

. evidence' and it apparently appears that the 

trial court has mis-read and mis-appreeiated 

.the evidence so produced by the prosecution 

which resulted in the erroneous conclusion

!l
'

•:!
I
<■

I!! s? .

.ar
i-ii
; f

0V:

.
•I
I r

>:

:

.
•i*

. . to which trial court reached. Hence,. the
i

sante is not maintainable in the eye of law ,

. '.and is liable to be set-aside.. \

• W .nu;.a-

(c) That the impugired judgment of learned trial'
.-r

■ court convicting the appellant is against law 

^'and facts of the case, The learned trial court
■

1
1

>I

'inade a' complete departure from the well •
1.
;■

■.■’i
settled principle relating to tlie safe

fc-: c'
1 .*

I* ’
'la
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■ administration of the criminal justice and 

• has taken mto consideration irrelevant and
i

inadmissible evidence, which is in. itselflitv ;
extra legal approach ■ shown by the. -Inal •

'
?
i court. ._4

Q
,

I ■'
f:

(d) ■ Thai none was charged in the FIR, later on 

the appellants were involved in llie causeK

d due to sci'vice rivah"y.

I

(e) Thai no empty shell was recovered from the. •ieg!
I

spot. Alleged recovery of pistol has got no

evidentiuiy value.
s'.

I

(f) That the so-called eye witnesses namely

Waqas Yousaf has- not charged anyojie by
I

any idcuhfication parade wasname nor

xonducted. Statement of said witness is .

contradicted by the other evidence produced1
by the prosecution.

)

i

:
That the so-callcd CCTV footage has got no 

. evidentiary value nor the same was brought

(g)
■;

I 'X

J

Ih
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>,
8.r

/and proved in accordance with law. Anyhow 

Llie same also negates the prosecution casc;
m v-
a-

IiIr'-0.^fi; (h) Jhat the medical officer who conducted the
a"-

...j

PM examination.categorically slated that in 

suspected cause of dcatlt is other than fire
n:m: :'h::
0 ■ ■■

►

:•
arm injury.

f .

jr
(i).. That learned trial court has convicted and

' ■ i

• sentenced the appellants on tire conjectures 

and surmises, hence the impugned judgment

s. >.ri«

•t'i is-liable to be set-asidc.

• 0) That the prosecution case i.s full of doubts,

dishonest improvements and. ail the PWs■o-'

• *
.S

f.; contradicts each other on material points.y
>1 c'->'iv

\ o-
.\

1;

•vV 
- (k) That the alleged recovery of two pistols is

*

false and fabricated-one. No cjnpiy shell was
I'”

recovered from the spot, hence recovery of
■>

'p'stois' has got ho evidential^ value.;
«

^Moreover no license was produced to prove' 

■• that 9mm pistol belonged to deceased.

t
i
'

S'

iU

]

ii'
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(1) That prosecution has badly failed to

its case - against the convict/ appellants 

beyond any shadow of reasonable doubt, 

therefore, the convict/ appellants may be 

• ■ acquitted honorably of the charges leveled 

against them in the instant case.

prove
I
t
‘

1
'f •i
j

J
i ■■

_ •«'

a ^

I

(m) That the appellants have been charged in theVr-
V

instant case with malafide intention.j

j-

(n) That there arc material contradictions in the
.s*

statement of witnesses which however were '

not considered by the learned trial court,
f

while awarding capital punishment.

(o): That learned trial court misinterpreted the 

fclevaiit' Articles of Qanoon e-Shahadat,

\
:

<•
j

19,84 as Nvell as the settled law . of Apex

Courts on the subject.i A

' *

. ■
I.

:jJ ■ / r

‘
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I/
2jb■■ I?•

T x' .
/ 10I

t/

XFf-.;-" (p) That the conviction and. sentence of thefv, •
;

appellants is legally and factually notM--' ■■ ■
r

.i

because ' principle ofiiiaintainable

til
• ^ appreciation of evidence laid down .by tbe •
}
t

i, superior courts has not been followed in true
>.■

!■

;
-.1 perspective.

!
)
.

(q) • That every' doubt arisen in the prosecution 

case . has been resolved in Tavour of
Is

prosecution against the principle of justice.

That learned trial court has gravely erred in •

recoding conviction against the appellants.

That, anyhow, tlic prosecution has miserably 

failed to bring home charge against die 

appellant beyond shadow of* reasonable

• (r)

doubt.

I

M

- (s) ■ That looking from any angle, the impugned

judgment is not maintainable in the eye of .

V .1

>:

.’.law.

1
i.

(t) That the other points shall be argued at the

• time of arguments.

I
t

i
:■> ■r

‘

i
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Tt is, therefore, humbly prayed that on aeccptatice 
' ....

of] instant appeal the impugned judgment dated 

25.01.2023 passed by learned Additional Scssions-Vll/ 

Judge MCTC, Abbotlabad may kindly be set-aside and 

ihe^ convict/ appellants be acquitted from the charge 

leveled against them.

.1

~.
•3

.r'
[

I Pr1 ! !

i'

t)

■

CONVICT/ APPELLANTS
i r Through•

Dated: / /2023

(MZAL-I-HAQ ABBASf).

fK

f
I

Senior Advocate Supreme Coint 
of Pakistan

■■

/c r••.t;
■ y

■H ,

(AWAIS ABBASI)
&

V. <0^ A
(SAA1> ABBASi) ' 

Advocates High Court, Abbottabad

' 'v

VERIFICATION

Verified that the contents of the foregoing appeal are tme and correct as per 

-information fumishe'd by my client and nothing has been suppressed from 

this Plonourable Court.
,<

, <
Dated:I f /2023 a::

(FAZAL-l-HAQ ABBASI)
Senior Advocate Supreme Court 

ofPakistan ,
'T- ■

t

1

2|

j *
%I
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i
BEFORE /THE PESHAW^AR HIGH COURT,

:.ABBOTTABA]D SmNCH.
)!

•

■-

f I
Cr. Appeal No. rA/2023

Waqas Ahmed son,of Muhammad Zulfiqai-, resident of Jahafar, Tehsil & 
District Abboltabad.& others. . . .

...CONVICT/ APPELLANTS

VERSUSi»

-
?

^The State & another.';
1

... RESPONDENTS
/ \

li i

.• CRIMINAL AEFEAL
!

V « '•
AFFIDAVIT;‘A'

I, Muhammad fiai son of Mishal Khun, resident of MohalaH Kuniiuti 

Jahafar, Tehsil District Abhottabad, (Attorney for convict/ appellant),

j

«

do hereby declare on oatli that the contents of foregoing appeal are true and
Ia

correct to the best of my knowledge, and belief and nolliing has. been

i suppressed from this Honourable Court.

h.pcf/ipt No:
CcrVrhjd that HiO verhien on Soierrm

before rn.'i on this

I

DEPONENT
r

.ai'f!;' r''; 'X-cn . y/-------------^-------— {.'-..y o 1^.. by .■

R

,:v
N

f’r

1# ■ .V''‘ • kll i
f PDI,)", A. MuLotiobed I^CHch

V/

vr.>
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<!» . ; Judgment Sheet

IN THE PESHAWAR HIGH COURT, AEBOTTABTO
BENCH

JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT
Cr. Appea! No. 27-N2Q2Z

JUDGMENT

?

;!
'r

' L•'i ■•t

< '
;

T

I

f
] i .

14.05.2024Date of hearing

Appellants (Waqas Ahmad & 02 others) By M/s. Fazal-e-Haq 
• Abbasi and Awais Abbasi, Advocates.

t

Respondents. (State) Mr. Muhammad Khurshid Tanoli, Advocate 
and (Complainant) By Mr. Yasir Rafiq Awan; 
Advocate.

************’»" ft****

MUHAMMAD FAH^tM WALI, J.- At a trial

held by learned Additional Sessions Judge-Vl/ . 

Judge MCTC Abbottabad in case FIR No. 165 

dated 17.02.2022 registered under Sections
: • I '

302 / 34 PPG at Police Station Mirpur District 

Abbottabad, appellants (1) Waqas Ahmad, (2) 

Abdul Qadeer and (3) Muhammad Imran, 

after having been found guilty for committing 

murder of deceased (Dildar alias Papu)

convicted under Section 302 (b) PPC 

and sentenced to life term imprisonment with 

■' a fine of Rs.2,00,000/- each, payable to legal 

heirs of

V >

%

have

■ been

:■

deceased under Section .544--A 

■ CnP.C,.or'in default to suffer further six (06) 

months S'.l with benefit of Section. 382-B

dated
i.

Cr.P.C vide impugned judgment

25.01.2023, hence, they have filed the instantp il. i.
• 1

5
I£
/



ij0-
2

appeal against their convictions and

sentences.

Since the learned trial court has also2.
n '

convicted Musawar Anwar son of Muhammad

Anwar vide same impugned judgmient dated
(

?:

25,01.2023 and sentenced him to life-;:V

imprisonment with a fine of Rs.2,00,000/-ii
T

payable to legal heirs of deceased under

Section 544-A Cr.P.C, or in default to suffer'

further six .(06) months S.l, therefore, he has 

.also filed Cr.Appeal No. 41--A/2023. against 

his conviction • and sentence. • Similarly, 

according to prosecution the weapon of 

offence i.e. 30-bdre pistol was also statedly 

■ recovered from one of the appellants namely, 

Waqas Ahmad, hen.ce, he was also convicted 

under Section -15 of the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa- ' 

Arms Act. 2013 and sentenced to two (02)

i

years S.l with a fine of Rs.10.000/- or in 

default to suffer further one month S,I with 

benefit of .Section 382-B Cr.P.C and. his 

sentences were ordered to run concurrently 

y;ith the punistimenl awarded to hirri in the 

therefore, he has also filed 

28-A/2023 against his

mam case

Gr.Appeal, No.

It
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I

conviction and sentence. Likewise, aggrieved

of the impugned judgment dated 25.01.2023

t

complainant (Mst. Sumaira Bibi) has also filed

Cr.Revision.No. 11'A/2023 for enhancement
) .

of' sentences of the appellants from life 

imprisonment to normal penalty of death. As

all referred appeals and criminal'revision have
■ !il arisen out of same FIR bearing No. 165 dated 

.17.02.2022/.'therefore, in, order to avoid
>1

s'.

I

.repetition, we propose to decide all these 

matters together through this single judgment:

According to prosecution story, as
V- ■■ ■explained in FIR (Ex.PW-6/.1), on 17.02.2022
■p • ■

af 20:30 hours complainant Mst. Sumaira Bibi 

(PW-11) while' lodging report in the 

Emergency Ward of ATH to Zubair Khan, ASl 

■ (pw-04} alleged that on the fateful day at 

19:00 hours her husband Dildar alias Papu 

(deceased then alive) had left his house for 

Bazar in order to' fetch fruit and milk for 

'children and while leaving the house he also 

.stated to have taken along his 9-MM licensed 

pistol. She stated to'have contacted him after 

izo / 25 minutes and the deceased told her 

that he-would return soon, hov;ever, again

1,

3.

I'

B
t

• 4

k

%
'i!3

I

If
V

i

C‘ •
<.«.

\

: • i ;

;

t •

I .

;
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when she ha'd contacted her husband, his 

phone remained unattended and then after a
■I

while when' again she made a .call, some 

unknown person attended the same and on' 

her query she wtrs informed that the 

deceased had been lying in ATH due to tieart 

failure. As per crime report, complainant 

stbted that she alorigwith her broliieraii-taw 

namely, Shatiq alias Banka, had rushed to . 

hospital and found her husband lying dead on 

the stretcher, having firearm injuries on his 

back and hand on the right side. The 

complainant disclosed to the police that her

husband was having enmities with numerous

people, however, at the moment, she could 

' not nominate anyone in particular rather 

shown her no objection over postmortem 

examination of her husband,, hence, the FIR

f-

.
’i’i

■

■f.

i!

-

i

%
■ j

[i

r

lil
is

. ibid was charged against unknown culprit (s).

of ■ investigation.On' conclusion

submitted before the learned trial 

court. Formal charge was framed against^the 

appellants, to which they pleaded not guilty 

' and claimed trial, in order to prove its case.

: chaltan was

prosecution produced Tifteen (15) witnesses
I F'
ki

■
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V

V J

% J

whereafter accused .were examined under:
J

■'■I

.Section 342 Cr.P.C, wherein they denied the

allegation and. professed innocence, however, 

they neither -opted to be examined on oath 

nor produced evidence in their defence. At^ 

the conclusion of trial, learned trial Judge 

convicted and sentenced the appellants vide

I r

i

1

impugned judgment as mentioned above.. 

Aggrieved, from judgment of learned trial 

court, appellants have filed this, and; the 

connected appeals. , .

We have heard arguments of learned 

counsel for, the parties as well as learned • 

•State counsel and gone through the record 

, with their valuable assistance.

Though the learned trial Court 

passed a guilty verdict, yet this being the 

appellate Court is under the bounden duty to. 

and re-assess the available evidence 

the file and to appfeciale as to whether the 

' 'learned trial Court was correct in its approach 

by convicting the’ appellants. In order to 

to ' whether the impugned •

5
i

1
i

T
Ibl 6.

>

) --■'N
re­ assess.

[

j

on/ -H
T'l N.

t

\
N.

A

\ 1

ascertain as 

’ ■ judgment-is based on proper reasoning and 

^'■'Ihat the leahed trial Court correctly applied its

V

I

I V’



IJk6

I

judicial mind to-the facts and circumstances of 

the case keeping in view the evidence 

available on the file, so we deem it essential

to thrash out’ the evidence
I'f

miscarriage of justice.

SO as to avoid

>•
.■

7. It appears from record that initially
I

one was charged in .first information report for
if ; .

commission of the offence, however, during 

. ■ *!- • ••

• invptigating when the i.O collected CCTV

footages 'and presumed that murder of Dlldar.
*• i 1 ■
alias Papu had been committed by the

appellants, thus

no

, !
.J

the ■ complainant (Mst. 

Sumaira Bibi). and her brother-in-law (Shafiq 

alias Banka) got recorded their, 

supplementary statements on the 7'^’day of

I

'i
.r

S' ; ;
•the occurrence i.e. on 24.02.2022 wherein-

V.

they nominated the appellants for committing
f . i

niurder of deceased, in this case neither the
■f

complainant nor her brother-in-iaw.,•

' ;}

themselves had seen the occurrence but
s r-

according to report made by the complainant
)
I i

when she contacted the deceased on his

cellular phone, the same was picked up by 

unknown person,,who. disclosed to her thal- 

the deceased had developed heart attack and

,v*'i

•. *

:!
i

i
J

■I

i
’

■r ?I 1k-1- • u;
I
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lying at ATH'(Ayub Teaching Hospital) and 

when she alongwith !her brother-in-law had . 

r’eached the hospital found the dead body of 

her deceased’husband, lying on the stretcher. 

However, the prosecution has produced 

Waqas Younas in support of iis case by ■ 

alleging that he had last seen the deceased.

This witness while appearing in the witness' 

.box as PW-13 Stated that on the day of 

'occurrence he was.present in his.house at the 

time in-between Maghrib and Isha when he - 

heard the sound of two (02) fire shots, upon

which he had statedly come out of his House
I

and noticed a person- while running ahead 

.Whereas two'persons were chasing him. thus, ^ 

he also started following them. According to 

his examination-in-chief, when he reached

I
;•

>

.I them, he noticed the person, running 

ahead, lying in unconscious condition in the 

corner of a vacant plot while the two persons

near►

j

.!
chasing him, were standing near to him and 

about their identity; theyupon his inquiry 

' stated to have disclosed, to him to be the
/A/-

V

.. n
government servants,, whereafter a police

also .uniform'constable,: wearing poiice i

i ■
t• i• I

:
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I!
arrived at the spot, thereafter, he left the spot.

This witness further stated that on the next

day of occurrence, the Investigating Officer 
• *' * * • . • * ■ 
came, to the. spot and on his pointation

prepared the site plan (Ex.PW-'l3/1)

vyhereafter his staternent.under Section 161

Cr.P.C was., recorded. During his
* i >

examination, this witness stated that he had 

noticed three persons, however, it was dark 

and all . the three

<1

s ;

4

cross-
■

persons wrapped 

themselves in shawls, thus, he. could not

identify them.. The ocular account set up by 

the prosecution that Waqas Younis had last
'

seen the deceased in the company- of 

appellants is.of no credence to be relied upon 

as he, during .his cross-examination, admi'tlecl
*

that he had hot identified the persons, running

ahead and chasing as they were wrapped in

'shawls. Besides, after arrest of the appellants 

the• prosecution was required to conduct- 

'identification parade, so as to strengthen its

•case against the appellants. From the above
; ,

evaluation, it has become clearer than crystal
I
I

:thal the prosecution, has miserably failed to

;

t I
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t.'

prove the ocular account beyond any shadow .
‘

of doubt. .
;

( ■.

So far as motive for the crime is 

concerned, as the complainant while reporting
i - " ' ' ' ' ‘the crime has failed to set up any specific .

■ ■

motive except that her

8'.

husband (the 

deceased) was having , enmities with many 

people. If so, then without ocular account and 

other corroboratory circumstantial or direct 

evidence, hovi^ it could be ascertained that the

a i

*

appellants had committed the murder of her

husband due.to enmity most particularly v>/hen 

there is no specific .motive mentioned neither 

in, first information report nor in the court 

statement with the appellants.

Another limb of the story as set up by 

the prosecution is statement of Muhammad

I

9

Farooq, SI/011 (PW-14). As per his statement, 

he has obtained the CGTV footage of tlie 

ATH whereby, the present appellants, who'
• ?

were four in numbers were seen. One of them•i, •

was statedly seen in uniform alongwith the

>'

I1

dead body of the deceased. Be that as it may.

but pronounced aspect of the matter is lha‘1

mere producing any footage of CCTV as a!
i

f
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I
t

piece of evidence in the court is not sufficient 

to be relied upon unless and until the 

proved to be genuine. The Hon’ble Supreme 

Court of Pakistan vi/hile delivering its verdict in 

the case of ‘‘Asfandynr & another Vs. Kamrah 

& another" reported as 2016 SCWIR 2084 has^ 

held that in order to prove the genuineness of
I

such footage, it is incumbent upon the 

defence or prosecution to examine the person
'i. ' *

who prepared such footage from the CCTV
1

system, while, in the case in hand the said

'
;
5 :

same is
I
1'-

J.

1.

•J
i

i

I * •

•persons could not be examined. Hence, on
I

'this score the CCTV.footage relied upon by,
k •

the prosecutibn is also of no worth credence. 

.Relevant paragraph ,of the ibid judgment is 

reproduced Pelow for ready reference: -
i fi-:

r

f ' "Mere producing any footage of ■

C.C.T.V. as a p/ece. of evidence in ' • 

the Court is not sufficient to be 

.'i relied' upon unless and until the 

same Js proved to be genuine. In * 

order .to prove the genuineness of 

: : such footage it is incumbent upon 

• the defence or prosecution to 

examine the person who prepared

i :

such footage ■ from the C.C.T.V.

So we modify the
s

system..
impugned judgment to the extent.

>

I

.1

i
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that the-accused is at liberiy to- 

produce^ evidence and prove the 

;• same strictly in accordance with the 

, provisions of the Order. 1984 and it

will not confine only to the Aiiicle 79 

:• of the Order, 1934."

4

:v.'

f
5,
•ri

& \
m t■«,y.-

i

■ *

;
f Otherwise too, as the appellants 

were police officials and admittedly posted at 

Police Station Mirpur whereas the occurrence .

iO.*
i

\
\

\
*:

had also beeri- taken place in the sameI

vicinity, therefore, their presence as shown in 

.the CCTV footage in the area while
i

performing their official duty is also not

exceptional. •

11. So far as recovery of weapon of
t

offence i.e. 30-bore pistol alongwith 9MM 

■pistol of the-deceased, on the pointation of 

appellant Waqas Ahmad is concerned, suffice 

it to say that no doubt according to- recovery 

memo (Ex.PW-14/14), allegedly, both ,'the 

pistols were, stated to have been recovered 

: from the appellant on his -pointation , on 

. 26.02.2022; but prominent aspect . of the 

matter is that'as per Register No.19 the 

. Investigating Officer had deposited the said 

pistols alongwith other parcels in. the

1

i.
:1

t
I
I

i.) '
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Mdlkhona on 19.02.2022, which makes Ihe

recovery doubtful as how it is possible that 

seven (07)'days prior to the recovery of both. 

the ibid pistols the same had been shown

.

deposited in the Malkhana, Besides, no doubt
1
1 •Jas per FSL report both the pistols were showns

• in working condition but as no empty could be'

recovered from the spot so as to affirm that:

vvhether any firing was made with the said

pistols or not, is yet s begging question, thus.

the hSL report is of no help to prosecution.

Another intriguing aspect of the 

matter is that the. doctor (Dr. Ejaz-ui-Haq 

CfvlO ATH) while appearing in the witness

12.

1

box as PW-07 stated in his report that though
%

firearm injuries had been found on the person 

of deceased but the cause of death was not 

firearm but .due to some other reason. This
}

factum further fortified his statement as'the

investigating Officer had not recovered any
* ' ‘ i

blood stained earth from the spot. On ohe

hand the complainant alleged that the
. ■ -1

appellants, had

deceased through firearm while on the other
• ;

hand the doctor opined the cause of death to

!
■ \r

: .■> '

i
1

committed murder , ofn

■1 ;
H .

!
i

■ i.- ,
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have been occurred due to some other 

reason and not owing to firearm injuries 

sustained by the deceased, -coupled with the • 

fact that nothing incriminating material in the
• j \

shape of bloodstained earth could have been 

recovered from :the spot, thus, in such a 

scenario the prosecution has failed to prove 

its case through medical evidence. It is settled

1

:?! ••<

t

' law that medical evidence by itself cannot5

identify the accused and it can only prove the

seat and nature of injuries, the cause of

death, type of weapon etc but such evidence 

cannot be' considered in isolation for '
i

conviction of accused in • absence • of

trustworthy ocular account or .circumstantial

evidence of’ convincing nature forming an>

unbroken chain to connect the accused with

murder of deceased, which is not available in
i

the present case. Reliance is placed on. the 

judgments reported by Hon’ble Supreme 

Court of Pakistan in the case of "y\/faf Hussain
’ i ,

Vs. Fakhar Hussain and another" reported as 

'2008 SCWiR 1103 and- in the case - of

r y, •

■
I

'■"Muhammad Ashraf and others Vs, , The:
I

• Sfafe” reported as 1398 SCMR 279.t'

y
:

>

: ,
•,1 . .•
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13. Last but not the least, it is pertinent, 

to mention here that although brother-in-law 

of, complainant namely, Shafiq alias Banka
j
'.I

allegedly verified the 

.cpmprainant, however, he was abandoned by* 

the prosecution. Thus, best evidence was 

withheld by prosecution which leads us to
< *t '

draw an adve.rse inference in terms of Article 

129(g) of the Oanun-e-Shahadat Order, 1984, 

that said witness, although closely related to 

'deceased,'perhaps wanted to disclose real

r|<<
>

.•i4
iI ,

report of the'

i

facts of the occurrence before the trial court

but his account, was not supporting the-

version of prosecution. Guidance is sought
1 1

from the judgment rendered by Hon'bie
'f

Supreme Court of Pakistan in the case of 

"Muhammad; Rafique and others Vs: The 

state and others" reported as 2010 SCMR
i

385.H ■

:
There is no two opinion about the14.

; j
1

tact that the cardinal principle of justice'
i ' • .

■ • ^

always laid, emphasis on the quality of 

evidence which^ must be of first degree and■

■0.r-

sufficient enough to dispel the apprehension:
:

I

. of the Court with regard to the implication of

;

■ i :
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I

■

innocent persons alon'gwith guilty one by the.
?c

prosecution,'otherwise, the golden principle of

jCistice would come into play that even a.
'

single doubt' if found reasonable would be 

sufficient to ' acquit the accused, giving 

him/them benefit of doubt because bundle of I

doObts are hot required to extend the legal
>. * ' '

benefit to the accused. In this regard, reliance
i

is'^placed on" a view held by the Supreme 

Court of Pakistan in case of “R/az Masih alias
■

-Mithoo Vs.'-State" reported as NLR 1S95\
^ f

I ' ICr.SC 694.

The'overal! impact of what has been 

d'fscussed above, the prosecution has 

■miserably failed to establish its case against 

the appellants beyond a ray of doubt, which ' 

should have been resolved in favour of the

1'5V

,*,

1

1 >

accused, however,, the learned trial Court 

while convicting ' the appellants 

impugned judgment has not adhered lo the

enunciated

vide
;i

.\
\ ■I
A forcelebrated principles 

dispensation of criminal justice. Accordingly, 

this and the connected criminal appeals,

are allowed, their

, A
\

t

mentioned above I

.convictions, and sentences awarded are set
i.

;
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mm1 i •.
aside and ■ resultantly, the. appellants, are 

acquitted of the charges levelled against 

them-. They shall be released forthwith, if not 

required to be detained in any other case
>

16. Since we have set aside . the

;
convictions and sentences awarded to thef

appellants, therefore, the connected criminal

revision for enhancement of their sentences

has become ' intructuous, which stands
i ■

dismissed accordingly.
(•

17. Above are the detailed reasons of

bur short orders of even date.
4

!

Announced:
•^'14.05.2024;

V'i’---

JUDGE

A

: J-UDGE
\

V * Han'No Mr. Justice Muhammnd Ija?. Kr\an 
Hop'ble Mr. Justice Muhammad Faiicvm Wak

rsalf. sesv

'

■ M

I

i



%
r 1t •»

. f

>'l

•''V • I
o • % \o.7'

' ^
;
! ->

BEFORE THE PESHAWAB mo 

' . ABBOTTAB a n RF.N rtl'
»•^anofeRT,. ’ \

. 'Vv-
VIJ \
»/>’

A ..'ft-/_'SJ /^V'C
.•■rA’' ./•

Cr, Appca] No., -A/2023

Waqas Ahmed son of Muhammad Zulfiqar, resident of Jabafar, Tehsil 
, District Abbottabad.

7.;
CC.>;

...CONVICT/ APPELLANT

VERSUS
-r

■•r

The State
t

... Pjr,-SFONi>.ENT> 6

•!

.*/

CASE FIR NO.-105 DATED 17.02.2022 UNDER 

SECTION , .ISAA-KPK, I^OLJCE 

. MIRPOR, biSTRICT ABBOTTABAD.
STATION.

appeal .under, section 410 Cr.PC, AGAINST 

TI-IE impugned judgment DATED 25.01.2023 

PASSED BY ADOmONAE SESSIONS JUDGE-Vl/'

JUDGE MGTC M5BO.rTABAD; WHEREBY, T’HE

LEARNEDTRIAL • COURT COlWiCTED 'U-IE

APPELLANT UNDER SECTION 15-AA KPK’AND

SENTENCED THBRE-UNDER TO' SIR0.-'LE 

IMPRISONMENT FOR TWO YEAR W-D'H FINE OF

RS.10,000/-, FAILING WHICH . TO SUFFEF
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i
i

{

■>i
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t

FURTI-IER-■'ONE" MONTH S.L BENEFITS OF 

SECTION 382-B CK.PC IS EXTENDED TO ITLE. 

CONVICT/ APFELLANT. BOTH TIIE SENTENCES 

SHALL RUN CONCURRENTLY.

*

It

1/

PIUYER: ON ACCEPTANCE OF INSTANT APPEAL 

THE IMPUGNED JUDGMENT 25.01.2023 PASSED 

BY additional; SESSIONS JUDGE-Vl/ JUDGE 

MCTC, ABBOTTABAB MAY KINDLY BE SET-

i| ;
['

. 1 ASIDE AND THE CONVICT/ APPELLANT .BE •■ h'

>

■ ACQUITTED FROM THE CHARGE LEVELED

AGAINST HIM;
I'

?''
I'

«
•I Respectfully Sheweth; -It

B!;Nf facts oLthe case ai'c as under:^
I

Titat the cojitents of the case are thiit, during the. 1n VV-*'

c'7 investigation of main case FlPv No. 165, dated
yaU'-

17.02.2022 under' Section 302/34 PFC, Police1;
Ns

Station Mii'piii', Abbottabad, convict/ appellant was 

arrested and during interrogation of the convict/ . 

appellant, one pistol 30 bore without licensed has 

been recovered .fro the tin box of the convict/

■
.r

W-I
■i
i> .
l1

,r
T-

5
• appellant and thcrcaPcr, Section 15AA-LI’K was>

i

1*^ added-with the main case.tvr- ;■

.
-.1

v
:

:■

m- ■ ■
■y ■
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■2. That later on challan under Section I5AA-KPK .
[|

was separated iVom the main case and sutmiUed 

before the court for trial of convict/ appellanl. ,I

That tliereafter, the convict/ appellant was3.

summoned, who was produced in .custody, and

proceeding under Section 265-C was complied
;

• witli and charge was framed against the convict/1

appellant to which he pleaded not guilty.

.V

That-in order ptp prove the case, the prosecution 

produced as many as five PWs and recorded

4.

- accordingly.
I

r

That alter closure of prosecution’s'evidence, the5.

statement of convict/ appellant was recorded uiidi^rI
j
i Section. 342 Cr.PC, wherein -he professed

f.'

innocence and refuted the charge leveled against
i

; \,:|
him.;,

j That after hearing the arguments, the learned trial6.
I
\K{

court convieled and sentenced the convict/

Ui^pcilant as noted above vide impugned j'udgmenl

dat<j;d 25.01.2023. Attested copy of the judgmentf

;

•uO. dated 25.01.2023 is attached as Annexure '“A”.

• V

N'

sr,'
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That Ihe convict/ appellant feeling 

the judgniej.it of the learned

7.i| aggrieved with
i}\ trial court dated 

25.01.2023 approaches this Honourable Court fori

setting aside the same, inter-alia, on the following 

■ grounds:- .
'I

' ;•, r
*.*

;

GROUNDS:

: - (a) ■ That the impugned judgment of learned trial

• court is suggestive of the fact that the same

was pronounced without proper, vetting of

the evidence led by the prosecution. The

conclusion so drawn by the trial court

manifestly shows that trial court has by-
»

passed the legal principles sellicd by the 

superior' courts for the appreciation ' of 

. evidence and it apparently appears that the 

trial court has mis-read and mis-appreciated 

the evidence so produced by'the prosecution 

which resulted in tlic erroneous conclusion

:
c>

i!

, J .0

••Uvfc;

‘s^1 *
I'* ■-

1
.c/'<•

, • to which trial court reached. Hence,. the 

. .same is not maintainable in the, eye of law

' and is liable to be set-aside.

-
^ * I

■ ■

.
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1'- ■v.
f: (b) aiial the impugned judgment of learned ,lrial' 

court convicting the appellant is against law 

and facts of the case. The learned trial court 

made a complete departure from the well- 

principle relating to the safe 

■ administration of the criminal justice and 

has taken into consideration irrelevant -and

inadmissible evidence, which is in itself
r

extra legal approach shown by the trial

r
1'.

i

If

*.

settled
V5

i

i

court.b' .

(c) l hat no empty shell was recovered from the
**

spot. Alleged recovery of pistol has got no 

evidentiary value.

.r

:

4

■ (d) That llie .recovery is planted and dubiously 

procured ajad as such of no legal effect.
/ ,
7'

1-

. (c) • That appellant has been charged in tlie
-.f

Instant case with malaiide intention.

(f) . That no independent witness was produced

1

by the prosecution, which could connect the •
t-d . • •

, convict-/ appellant with the commission ft'01
i*

. offence.
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(g) , Thai, .the recQveries have been planted

against the convlct/appellant in coimivonce

with complainant party.1,

.r

(h)- Thai despite the availability of independent 

iocal witnesses, the prosecution did no.l 

bother to associate them as a witness, which 

casts serious doubts on t,hc proseculion.

t .

1.

I

story. *

I

(i) That the 10 of the case dishonestly 

ifivesligated the case with collusion' of
'Ur-

• complainant party.

there ’ are improvements andCi) That

contradictions in. the - statements of PWs
■ •.<

produced before the trial court.

(k) That learned trial court, misinterpreted the 

. i-elevant Ai'llclcs of Qanoon-c--Sha!i.adat,

1984 as well as tlie settled , law of Apex

Courts on the subject.

. 1

t n' ■

i

:
I

■

r
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(I) That the conviction and

appellants is legally and factually 

maintainable

sentence of'the

not
;

because principle of 

appreciation of evidence laid down by the 

superior courts has not been followed in true

I

;
i

perspective.i

!
V

«
(ni) lhat every doubt arisen in the prosecution 

, case has been resolved in favour of 

prosecution against the principle of justice.
I

That learned trial court has gravely erred in
. i . . . ^

. recoding conviction against the. appellant.

r

4.'

a

r

, (n) . That the convict/ appellant is previously 

non-convicied in any criminal case.j

(o) ■ That, anyhow, the'proseculion has miserably

failed to bring home charge, against the
,. '

appellant beyond shadow of reasonable

. w
':v. .•

1

■ r.-
K

• ■ t

• doubt.-. t*
t

\
- ' (p) . That looking from any angle, the impugned

judgment is not maintainable in Uie eve of.*

law.
Cr

i.\

I ;

:
i

'•'1
1-.s

l'
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(q) That the .other points shah be argued 

time of ai'giimcnts.

at theK . ••

Ih

It is, therefore, humbly prayed that on acceptance

of instant appeal tiie impugned judgment 25.01.2023 '
t

passed by Additional Sessions Judge-VI/ Judge MCTC, 

Abbottabad niay kindly he set-aside uiid the

appellant be acquitted from the charge leveled against '

him.

convict/

t

.....CONVICT/ APPELLANT .
ThroughDated: 3J J t /■ /2023 A

. (FAZAL-I-HAQ. ABBASI) 
Senior Advocate Supreme Court 

ofPaldstan
y

A\\

(AWAIS A ■il) .\
. :• \.- &

c''if (SAAB ABBASI): 
Advocates High Coari,. Abbottabadr

VEEHICATLON i

Verified that the contents of the foregoing appeal are. true and correct as per
infomiation furnished by my client and nothing has been suppressed from 
this Honourable Court. •

/ /2023; Dated: ><5^

(EAZAL-l-HAQ ABBASI) 
Senior Advocate Supreme Court 

ofPakisian

I .
: ■

. . 1 ;

■ ■

' »
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Cr. Appeal No. ^t'l -A/2()23' .'•»
•v- ;
I

Waqas Ahmed son of Muhammad Zulfiqai-, resident of Jahafiir, TchsiT 
District AbboUabad. Sl

I

...COISVICT/ Al^rELLANT
r

VERSUS
. \

Stale.
f • >:>■

1 ... RESPONDENT\.v
V- N.,v'* N

CRIMINAL AFPF.AT,:
c«*

\ •
/. ■

A'. •,

I, Muhammiul Fiaz non of Mishal Khan, resident of Mohalah Karmuii 

.Jahafar, Tehsil & District AbboUabad, (Attorney for convict/ appellant),
j

do hereby declare on oath that the contents of foregoing appeal are tme and

coiTect to the best of my 'knowledge and belief and nothing has been

.suppressed from, this Honourable Court.
S 7h

*.

fjp/u: ■ r
>

s.ocaipt No: DEPONE'NTS.iI

Csrlihijc! that the above was verified on Solornr. 
aflirmatron

/
beiore me on this

&jy oh

■■'In!

■

C'MvnL-xhu-
CC'.irl AL...

V,C'".
,L. .1

i

/3/^ ■

I:\\'‘
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V,Judgment Sheet Ii
<Sl 1I

iN THE PESHAWAR HIGH COURT, ABBOTtA&Jd "■
BENCH

JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT

!

'’'vI

X.,.

, Cr.Appeal No. 28-A/'2023

JUDGMENTf

Date of hearing.: 14.05.2024
' ■ •

Appellant {Waqas Ahmad); By ,M/s. Fazal-e-Haq Abbasi 
Awais Abbasi, Advocates.

• j . ’ * * .

Respondents...'(State) By, Mr. Muhammad Khurshid Tanoli 
Advocate.

and

l t
I

MUHAMMAD FAHEEM WALI. J.~ For
j reasons to be recorded later, this appeal is

allowed. Conviction and sentence of the

appellant namely, Waqas Ahmad son of

Muhammad Zulfiqar, recorded by learned)
i.

Additional Sessions Judge-VI / Judge MCTC
!
Abbottabad vide judgment dated 25.01.2023

in case FIR No. 165 dated 17.02.2022

registered under Section 15 of the Khyber 

Pakhtunkhwa Arms Act, 2013 at Police
• i

Station Mirpur District Abbottabad, is set-r ■'

■A:
/.

aside and he is acquitted of the charge.

leveled against him..He be set free froni Jail 

forthwith, if not required in any other case. •|c

Announced;
14.05.2024. .

JUDGE

fiiu.-. •

mI
3 £- .

Hon'Oia h'.r. Mkii Mtihammi'd Ifiir Klinii
Hon'btoMr. Juiltce Wi#'

CSM^Ki

r.i
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■ • Judgment Sheet

IN THE PESHAWAR HIGH COURT, ABBOT]
BENCH

JUDICIAL D&PARTWiENT
Ci: Appeal No. 28-/V2023

JUDGMENT
......... ....... .7.14.05.2024................ ........

Appellant (Waqas Ahmad) By M/s. Faza!-e-Haq Abbasi and
Awais Abbasi, Advocates.

■If

■?
•<t

l </>
•t •'.'j ■•* t.-.-

V
!
^1

Date of hearing'

Respondents. (State) Mr. Muhammad Khurshid Tanoii Advocate
»*#tjir*****»***»**fc*V

MUHAMMAD FAHEEM WALI: J.-. ■ For

reasons recorded in our detailed judgment of •, •
1

I j

even date in the connected Cr.Appeal No.

27-A/2023, this appeal is allowed. Conviction

and sentence of the appellant (Waqas Ahmad

son of Muhammad Zulfiqar) is set-aside and 

he is acquitled of the charge, levelled against . 

him. He be set .free from Jail forthwith, if not

•V

;

required in any other case.

J t,

Announced;
14.05.2024.(.

;(

J' /<■•■■'

I

Hdn'blo Mr. Justice MulJOuirtod yJK"’ 
,Honltlp Mr. Justice Mu/iaiiuiinriI'ahcon' Wii/i

/•Ssf. SCS7

i

.
< '

I
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Judgment Sheet •(
tOt

IN THE PESHAWAR HIGH COURT, ABBOTTAbVd
.BENCH

i;

L

I

JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT

Cr.Appeal No. 27-A/2023
I

JUDGMENT
Date of hearing'

Appellants (Waqas Ahmad & 02 uthers) By M/s. Fazai-e-l-laq 
Abbasi and Awais Abbasi, Advocates,

Respondents. (State) Mr. Muhammad Khurshid Tanoli, Advocate 
and- (Complainant) By Mr. Yasir Rr.vfiq Awan, 
Advocate,

•.•.14.05.2024

’

**'* ****************
1

MUHAMMAD FAHEEM WALL J.- At a trial
fc

held by learned Additional Sessions Judge-Vl/

Judge MCTC Abbottabad in case hlR No. 165•»

dated 17:02.2022 registered under Sections

302 / 34 PPC at Police Statioii-Mirpur District 

Abbottabad, appellants (1) Waqas Ahmad, (2)

Abdul Qadeer and (3) Muhammad Imran•• ,

after having been found guilty for committing'

murder of deceased (Dildar alias Papu), have

U'-p'
been convicted under Section 302 (b) PPC

and sentenced to life' term imprisonment with
A
Ifey..:- a fine of Rs.,2,00,000/- each, payable to legal'

heirs of deceased under Section 544-A

Cr.P.C, or in default to suffer further six-(06).

months S.l. with benefit of Section 382-B

;Cr.P;C vid'e. impugned - judgment dated

25.01.2023, hence, they have filed the instant

i

i

''
i

■1“
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»

I

appeal against their convictions and-
■I

seritences.I.

2. • Since the learned trial court has also .
li-

convicted Musawar Arwar son of Muhainmad. •

Anwar vide same impugned judgment dated

25.01.2023 and sentenced - him to life

imprisonment; i'with a fine of Rs,2,00,000/-,i

d

payable to legal heirs' of deceased under
I

1 Section 544-A Cr.P.C, or in default to suffer

further six {06) months S.l, therefore, he has-
■

also filed Cr.Appeal No. 41-A/2023 against
:

his' conviction and sentence. Similarly
:

according .to' prosecution the weapon of 

offence i.e. 30-bore pistol .was also statedly 

recovered from one of the appellants namely 

Waqas Ahmad, hence, he was also convicted, 

under Section 15 of the Khyber Pakhtunkhvja 

Arms Act, 2013 and sentenced to two (02) 

■years S.l with a fine of Rs.10,000/- or In

t

default to suffer further one month S.l with
'■.e-

1 c.' benefit of Section '382-8 Cr.P.C and his
\ \ sentences were ordered to run concurrenlly

\ [

With the punishment awarded to hjin in the , 

. therefore, he has also filed 

Cr.Appeal No. 28-A/2023 against his

\

mam case 1

1

1

i

i '1 j

V. \
I ;
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; .
conviction arid sentence. Likewise, aggrieved

’ i
of.the impugned judgment dated 25.01,2023 

coriiplainant (Mst, Sumaira Bibi) has also filed*

Cr.Revision No. 11-A/2023 for enhancement

of sentences of the appellants from life. 

iriVprisonment. to normal penalty of death. As. 

alfreferred appeals and criminal revision haVve

I

...0
arisen out of same MR bearing No. 165 dated

17.02.2022-, 'therefore, in order to avoid

repetition, we propose to decide all these 

mahers together through this single judgment.
j

-».
According to prosecution story, .asI * 3.I-

explained in FIR (Ex.PW-6/1}, on 17,02.2022'

at'20:30 hours complainant Mst. Sumaira Bibi-
i .

. (P\{^-11) while., lodging' report .in 

En.-iergency VVard of ATH to Zubair Khan, ASi 

(■PW-04) alleged that on the fateful day at 

19:00 hours her'husband Dildar alias Papu

the

■

(deceased then alive) had left his house for 

Bazar in order to fetch fruit and milk for
j \' ill '

children and while leaving the house he -also...

stated to have taken along his 9-MM licensed

U' ,*
■-%

N
I**

'*-■ ►

.1*t

pistol. She stated to have contacted him after 

20, / 25 minutes and the deceased told he.r 

that he would return soon,, however, again

■ \

(

{ •

• A
1

it V

t 1

I
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when she had contacted her husband, his: 

phone remained unattended and then atier a 

while when again she made a call, some.

{;

!::■ ■

r

)
unknown person attended the same and- on!

her query' she was informed that .the-
I ' t

deceased had. been lying in ATH due to heart
ii

failure. As per crime report, complainant 

stated that she alongwilh her brother-in-law
:

na'mely, Shafiq alias. Banka, had rushed to 

hospital and found her husband lying dead on 

-the stretcher, having firearm injuries on his

f

\

bpck and hand on the right side. The
«

complainant disclosed to the police that her
r

husband was having.enmities with numerous

people, however, at the moment, she could
t

•n.pt nominate anyone in particular rather

•'shown her no objection over postmortem
<

examination of her husband, hence, the 1-IR!

ibid, was charged against unknown culprit ,(s).a

V' On conclusion of investigation;t| *1 4-.'
■fi|

I

challan was submitted before the learned .trialS: • . •
V

court. Portnal: charge was framed against the
i'

appellants, to which they pleaded not'guilty 

• and claimed trial. In order to prove ils casco,

r ’1

I

. prosecution. produc€;(.l fifteen (15)Witnesses,
;1

if. I

t

1

i. '
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whereafter accused were examined under

Section 342 .Gr.P.C, wherein they denied-the
i

allegation and professed innocence, however

they neithefropted to be examined on oath

nor produced evidence in their defence. At

the conclusion -of. trial, learned trial Judge 

convicted and sentenced the appellants vido;
■ •

impugned judgment as mentioned above.

Aggrieved from judgment of learned trial

court, appellants have filed this and the

connected appeals.

We have heard arguments of learned 

counsel for the parlies as well as learned

5:

Slate counsel and gone through the record .
ip.

with their valuable.assistahce. .

Though the learned trial • Court 

passed a' guilty verdict, yet this being the

6.-

I*'* *

appellate Court is under the bounden duly to
■ s

and .re-assess the available, evidenceassess
Si}

on the file and to appreciate as to whether the 

learned trial Court was correct in its approach 

by convicting the appellants. In order to 

ascertain as to whether the impugned 

• judgment is/based on proper reasoning and 

' that the learned trial Court correctly applied.its

,y

:
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judicial mind'lb the facts and circumslances of

the case keeping in view . the evidence-:

available on the file, so we deem it essential
I

to thrash out the evidence so as to avoid

miscarriage of justice.

i:. It appears from record that initially no 

one was charged in first information report for. 

commission of the offence, hovv'over, during.

investigating when the 1.0 collected CCTV; .

footages and presumed that murder of Dildar

alias. Papu had been committed by the

appellants, thus, the complainant (Msl. 

Sumaira Bibi) and her brother-in-law (Shafiq
oV

theiralias . Banka) got recorded

-supplementary statements on the 7^'' day of 

the occurrence i.e. on 24.02.2G22 wherein 

they nominated the appellants for committing 

murder of deceased. In this case neither the

:

-MS-
her ' brother-in-lawcomplainant nor

Ihetnselves had seen the occurrence, but

according.to report made by the complainant

When she contacted the deceased on his

cellular .phone, the same was picked up' by 
: • *

unknown person, who' disclosed to her that 

' the deceased had developed heart attack and

B
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I
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lying at ATH (Ayub Teaching Hospital) and ' 

When she alqngwith her brother-in-law had 

. reached the hospital found the dead body, of- 

her deceased husband, lying on the stretcher. 

However, the prosecution has . produced • 

Waqas Younqs in support' of its case by 

alleging that he had Inst seen the deceased

r ,*•

I

This witness while appearing in the witness 

box. as PW-13 stated that on the day oT*
i

occurrence he was present in his house at the 

time in-between Maghrib and Isha when he
1«'

heard the sound of two (02) fire shots, upon

which he had statedly come out of his house ,

and noticed a person while running ahead'
i

whereas two persons v;ere chasing him, thus,
: i

he aisc started following them. According.to 

hi.s examinalipn-in-chief, v^/hen he reached 

near them-, he noticed the person, running 

ahead, lying in unconscious condition in' the
u

•:

corner of a vacant plot while the two persons

chasing hirr),-were standing near to him .and

his inquiry about their identity, they
: - u 'I ■
stated to have disclosed to him to be- the

government "servants, whereatler a police

police uniform,- also

1

-upon

1

constable, ■ wearing
;r''

•,f .

' '

;
I
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arrived at the spot, thereafter, he left the spot.V.>

This v^ilness fu'rther slated that on the nextii-'

'j; day .of occurrence, the Investigating Officei

cam’e to the spot and on his polntation

prepared the site .' plan (Ex.PW-13/1), 

vi/hereafter his statemelit under Section 161

Cr.P.C was recorded. During his cross-

examination, .this witness stated that he-Had

n.oticed three, persons, however, it was dark

and' all the three persons wrapped
,A,

themselves in' shawls, thus, he could not‘V'

/.o'-'

identify them. The ocular account set up by
V.j':- .c''...0w I

the.' prosecution that Waqas Younis had last 

seen the deceased in the company ; of 

ap'pellants is'of no credence to be relied upon 

as he, during his cross-examination, admitted 

that he had riot identified the persons, running 

ahead and chasing as they were wrapped in 

sriaw/s. Besides, after arrest of the appellants 

the prosecution was required to conduct 

identification parade, so as to strengthen its 

against the appellants. From the above,

evaluation, it has. become clearer than crystal
.
that the prosecution has miserably failed to

'

1

case

i

■ {

j.
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prove the ocular account beyond any shadow 

of doubt

8. So far as motive for the crime, is
i

coricerned, as the complainant while reporting

the crime has failed to set up any specific

motive except, that her husband (the
;

deceased), was having enmities with many

people. If so. then without ocular account and

other corroboratory circumstantial or direct

evidence, how it could be ascertained that the

appellants had committed the murder of her

husband due to enmity most particularly when•,V''.f.
t

there is no specific motive mentioned neither
;

*, <.■ in. first information report nor in the court>.
f

statement with the appellants.

Another limb of the story as set up by 
1 0

.|.he, prosecution is statement of Muhammad' 

IFarooq, Sl/Oll. (PW-14). As per his stateriient.

9..I

r.a ,

,he has obtained the CCTV footage of the
i.

ATH whereby the present appellants, v«/ho

were four in numbers were seen. One of theni

was statedly, i-seen in uniform alongwiih the ,V.*'-

dead body of the deceased. Be that as it may
• *k *

but pronounced aspect ot the matter is that 

mere producing any footage.of CCTV as a

i'

!
1

I

trI,

f'i ^

i
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piece of evidence in tfie court is not sufficient' 

to be relied upon unless and until the same is
Bk

proved to be genuine. The Hon'ble Supreme

!• .
Court of Pakistan while delivering its verdict in
« •

the case of “Asfandyar & another' \/s. Kamran
I

& anofher” reported as 2016 SCMR 2084 has

held that in. order to prove the genuineness, of

such footage, it is incumbent upon the 

defence or prosecution to examine the person
I

w.
who prepared such footage from the CCTV

t

system, while, in the case in hand the said 

persons coul.d not be examined. Hence, on

this score the,-CCTV footage, relied upon by

Iheh^rosecution is also of no worth credence. 

Relevant paragraph of the ibid judgment is 

reproduced below for ready reference: -

'‘Mere producing any foolage of 

C.C.T.V. as a piece of evidence in ■ 

the Court is not sufficient to he 

relied upon unless and uniil the 

■ ' same is proved to be genuine. In 

order to prove the genuineness of

such footage ii is incumbent upon . 

the defence or prosecuiion to: 

examine the, person who prepared 

such ‘footage , from (he C.C.T.V.

So , we modify the

Lr/

system.:

impugned judgmenl (o the extent

)

I- ;\

j.

0

i
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that the accused is at liberty to 

produce 'Evidence and prove the 

■■: same striclly in accordance with the 

provisions of the Order 1984 and i( 

will not confine only to the Article 79 

'-of the Order, 1984.”

, r
ifv.'
■r

1
:r

_ I

i-

t:

‘I i

Otherwise too, as the appellants' 

were police officials and admittedly posted at 

Police Station Mirpur v^-hereas the occurrence ‘

10.,i

I

had, also been taken place ,in the same

v/icinily, therefore, their presence as shown in■

I

the CCJV footage in the area whiie 

performing their official duty is also not' 

exceptional.

,T'-

...r"

f

So-far as recovery of weapon of 

offence i.e. 30-bore pistol alongwith 9MM 

pistol of.the .deceased on the poinlation of 

appellant W'aqas Ahmad is concerned, suffice 

.it to say that ho doubt according to recovery 

(Ex.PVV-14/14). allegedly, both the 

pistols were .stated to have been recovered 

from the 'appellant ■ on his poinlation on 

26.02,2022 ibut prominent aspect of the 

matter is that as per Register. No.19 the 

Investigating .Officer had deposited the said

pistols alorigwith ^ other parcels in- the

11

I
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Malkhena oh 19.02.2022, which makes the
r
i

recovery do.ubtful as how it is possible that

'4- seven (07) days prior to the recovery of bo.th1

the: ibjd pistols the same had been shown 

deposited in the Malkhana. Besides, no doubt
1I*

as'per FSL report-both tiie pistols were shown 

in -working condition but as no empty could be 

Recovered from the spot so' as to affirm that 

whether any'firing was made with the said 

pistols or not, is yel a begging question,'thLis,. 

the i'SL report is of tio help to prosecution.-.

Another intriguing aspect of the- 

matter is that the doctor (Dr. Djaz-uhHaq 

CMO ATH) while appearing in the witness 

box as PW-07 stated in his report that though 

firearm injuries had been found on the person 

of deceased but the cause of death was not 

■firearm but 'due do some other reason. This ■

factum further fortified his statement as the
' *

Investigating Officer had not recovered any

p

T

12.

)

I

blood stained earth from, the spot. On one 

complainant alleged that tlie 

• committed murder ,pf

.1

hand the 

appellants had 

cleceased through firearm while on the other

I

S-iand the doctor opined .the cause of death to.■

:
?

.

, !
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have been occurred due lo .some other

^■|
ti' ,

reason and not owing to firearm injuries,
!) .

sustained by the deceased, coupled with the

fact that nothing incriminating material in the
•'I- ’ 1 ! .

shape of bloodstained earth could have beeni

recovered from the spot, thus, in such a
» . scenario the prosecution has failed to prove

its case through medical evidence. It is settled
V-

lavv that medical evidence by itself cannot
•y

identify the accused and it can only prove the'

seat and nature of injuries, the cause of
I' *

?■ . death, type of weapon etc but such evidence
i ,

I

cannot be considered in isolation, for

conviction of accused .in absence of
i

triistv^orthy dtular account or circumstantial
V

evidence of -convincing nature foriTiing an 

unbroken chain to-.connect the accused with
..

murder of deceased, which is not available in 

the present case. Reliance is placed on the
5
$
if

r
judgments reported - by Hon’bie Supreme 

'Court of Pakistan in the case of "Altaf Hussuin 

•Vs. Fakljar Hussain and another" reported as

the case of

..

•« *
;200a -SCIVIR 1103 and in 

"Muhammad- Ashral and others Vs
I

■The
i ..

Slate" reported as 1998 SCMR 279.

■

i
■;
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Last but not the least, it is pertinent 

. to mention here that although brother-in-law ’ 

of complainant namely, Shafiq alias Banka 

allegedly verified the report of the ■ 

complainant, however, he was 'abandoned by

the prosecution. Thus, best evidence was
1 ■ . ■ .

withheld by 'prosecution which leads us to

13.i

.1!

draw an adverse inference in terms of Article

129(g) of the Qanun-e-Shahadat Order, 1984 •>

that said witness, although closely related to

deceased, perhaps wanted to disclose real

facts of the occurrence before the trial court
i < '

but his account was not supporting the 

version of prosecution. Guidance is sought 

from the judgment ■ rendered by Hon’ble 

Supreme Court of Pakistan in the case of 

"Muhammad Rafiquo and others Vs. The

stale and oUiers" reported as 2D10 SCWIR-i
1

385.r-

There is no two opinion about the 

fact that the' cardinal principle of justice 

always laid emphasis on the quality ot 

evidence which must be of first degree and 

sufficient enough io dispel the apprehension 

. of the Court with regard to the implication of

14.
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innocent persons alongwith guilty one by the.
I
I
f

prosecution, otherwise, the golden principle of 

justice would come into play that even .a
ii

single, doubt if found reasonable would be' 

sufficient to .acquit the. accused giving
I

him/them benefit of doubt because bundle of

.doiibts are not required to extend the legal

benefit to the accused.- In this regard, reliance

is placed on a view held by, the Supreme

Court of Pakistan in case of “R/az Masih aliasl-.l-
Mithoo Vs, St-ate" reported as NLR 1995

Cr.SC 694. ^

The overall impact of what has been ,

discussed above, the prosecution has 

riii.serably tailed to establish its case against 

the appellants beyond a ray of doubt, which

;

i

should have been resolved.in favour of the

accused, however, the learned trial Court 

while convicting the appellants, vide 

impugned judgment has no.t 'adhered to the

celebrated • principles enunciated for 

dispensation of criminal justice. Accordingly, 

this and-the connected criminal appeals,

are allovt/ed, their

7'

.-t

S'*v ' •

mentioned above
.
convictions ar\6 sentences awarded are set

t
V''*

i

I
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V
aside and resultantly. the appellants are

r'l's!' .‘'i
acquitted of the charges levelled against

•them, they shall be released forthwith, if not 
■ ■ , I ■

required to be detained in any other case.

have set aside the
. I

Since we16.

convictions and sentences awarded to. the

appellants, therefore, the connected criminal 

for enhancement of their sentences
* f ' '

has become infructuous, which stands
‘ ' I

dismissed accordingly.

Above are the detailed reasons of

our short orders of even date.

. ‘

• i-'
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tAnnounced; ' 
14.05.2024.
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JUDGE

Hm'bls Mr. Jijsfice Muhammad (jaz Khan 
Hon'ble Mr. Jus/icc Muhammad Faliceni Wall.
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MS TJiE COURT OF MUHAMMAD UMER-AL-FAROOO 
KHAN, ADDL; SESSIONS JUDGE-Vl/JUDCE MCTC

ABBOTTADAP.

i

Sessions Case No. 05/Vll.of2022
j

Dale of commcncen^ent of trial; 
Dale of Decision: •

29.03.2022 
25.01.2023 .

t
P - :>

THE STATE
Througli;-

/ - Sumatra Bibi widow of Deceased Dildar 
R/0 Kasakai present Jhangi Qazian 
(Complainant)

\

C d.
V .V

V

. ■ VERSUS

1. Waqas Ahmad son of M.uharnmad Zulfiqar R/0 Jaliafar
VI ‘ ‘ • ,

2. ;Musawar Anvvar son of Muhammad Anwar R/0 Aziz
Bang presently Jhangi Syedan •

3. Abdul Qudeer son of Muhammad Yaqoob F-UO Nagri 
Bala

4. Muhammad • Imran son of Muhammad Bashir R70
Badyal

('Accused faeiriR iriaH
i<.

CASE FIR NO. 165 DATED 17.02.202?. U/S 3.02/34 PRC
RQLICE STATION MiRPUR. TEHSIL AND DISTRJCT
ABBQTTABAD;

• j

tV
w

JUDGMENT
! im

■■ M

Xccuscd are facing trial in case flR No. 165 Dated 

:17.02.2022. U/S 302/34PPC Police Slation Mirpur, 

•Tehsil and District Abbottabad.

V,
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r
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^,2. FIR (BxiPW.O/I) regislcrcd'on Ihc slrenj^th of

Ex-.PW/l/I, manifest that the complamani Msi. Sumaira 

^Uibi. widow, of ihc deceased Dildar. alias Pap'u on 

17.02.2022 at about 2030 hour along with her brother-: 

in-!avv namely ^ihart^ alias Banka son of Rafi^ue; 
reported . the mailer to the.. local' ^police at A3'H 

•Abbo.Uabad, Ihal at'about 7.00. PM her husband, wenoip 

Bazar for fetching fruit and milk' lor children and while .
leaving die house he also look along'his 1? IvIM licctiscd 

pisioh After 20 or .25 minutes''she called, her husband, 

who^.told her that he'.would retunv spon-. A fief- a while, 

once she called-hirn. again', .her husband did'not attend- 

the caljs. However, after,a while once-she-.again made a 

call.on his cellular phone, some-unlgiown allcndccl the- 

caif-and -inquired that'who is;she?; whereupon Slie;said 

lhat,she'is the wife.qf.Pappu, io'which'he;again-inquired 

,lhat'-which Pappu and'she told-die ai,tenda'nt ,thai PappO 

is.the owner ofccirular'-ph'dhe then he 'disclosed that her 

husb'and is' lying in ATH .and may 'h'avc met heart 

. attack. Oiv.d-iis she-'along w’ith her brotlicr-i,n,-,la\v :wcot- 

to .die Hospital where she found her husband lying dead- 

on a stretcher-having fire, arm injuries on-hisiback and 

•hand on, the-right side: That her husband. had enmities

and someone.; has murdered him through firearms. At
*'

the iiiomeril She cannot nominate anyone in Jjaiticular- 

him to be examined thro.ugh.

bI
5
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■

I
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but: want
autopSy/post'morienr and ■charged 'unknown- .for.' the-.

c.omrriissjoh of’offence. Her report \vas\reduced 'in

.the ishape. of Murasila. Ex--P'V‘/ AJl '-while 

of dcccas.ed, under 'the cu'sto'dy- of co'nsi.able

?. ...

i'
writing in

I

.carcass

;SaiTif'UUah No.i558/ATH" was handed..over ,10 Doctor.
'

i
■for pp'slmorleih whereas, A'/i//'i:)s/7£:i was sent to Pdiicc, 

tht'ougli constable Gul Klehman, No.4J fbi..Station
;) '.

I
i.
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registration ‘ of FIR. Thus, on the report of the

complainant (PW.ll) the FIR was registered against 
unlmown accused.

y

j

ILater, in' due course of proceedings through 

investigation, complainant recorded iicr supplementary
Statement O/S 164 Cr.P.C on 24,02.2022 befoie the

Judicial Magistrate concerned whicli is ExPV/.ll/l, 

wherein, she charged Uie accused facing trial for-the 

commission of the offence.

3.r

CTC
S<^*

After completion of investigation, llie complete challan 

was pul in the court on 29.03.2022. The-accused were 

summoned. Accused Waqas Aiimad produced, in 

custody while accused linran, Musawar!Anwar and 

Abdul Qadeer on bail, appeared before the court.

Formalities under section 265-C Cr.P.C were complied 

with and formal charge of the , accused was framed 

under section 302/34 PPC on 25.6.2022, to which they
. did not plead guilty and clainted trial.

In support of their contention, prosecution produced 

fifteen witnesses whereas the rest were abandoned 

being unnecessary. The gist of prosecution's evidence

is canvassed here in below;

Shah Nawaz FC. No.44. P\V-1,- who took the sealed

to the FSL Peshawar and 

Medical College' vide road
parcels, of the instant case 

, laboratory of KJiybcr 

; certiticald Ex.PWM/l'to Ex.PW.1/3. He is also the

. 2023
i

. marginal vvitnessofthe recovery memo Ex.PW. 1/4 and 

also took the parcel to the FSL vide receipt Ex.PV/.5/l.
/,,

.!
■ ■Vi

'

i
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His s(utcmcnt was also recorded by the 10 underIt
'{s

Section 161 Cr.P.C.
II

S. Shabir Ahmad FC No. 63, PW-2, slates liiat he is the 

marginal '.witness of the recover)' memo Ex,PW.2/l vide 

which (he accused Imran led the police party to his 

home and on his poirilalion ihe 10 recovered Cari'y
I »

Vaii/Dabba bearing No. 2259-LED and disclosed,that i .
' * ■ '*

the said vehicle he took the deceased Dildar v.'ith the 

help of his friends to ATH Abbotiabad. 'The recover)' 
memo is correct and correctly bears his signature and 

that of co-margina! witness. His statement was also
I

recorded by the 10.

;

in

C'‘>^ 9s<?6m

Sanriullah FC No. 658, PW-3, states that on 17.02.2022 

Zubair Khan ASI handed him the dead. body of 

deceased.' for. post mortem examination. Afl:or the 

examination the doctor handed over to him PM, report 

of the deceased along with a big plastic bottle in sealed 

condition having 5 small bottles containing liver, small 

.. intestine, stomach, bullet and heart. The,doctor also 

handed, over to him blood stained gannents of tlm 

deceased containing Slialwar, Qmneez and while 

Banyan which were also in sealed condition. All the 

above articles were handed over to. the lO'iri ATFI 

Hospital who sealed the same into parcel No. 1 and 2 by 

affixing monogram of FA. The 10 prepared the 

recovery memo Ex.PW.3/1 which corrccify bears his 

signature and that of co-marginal witness..

V*

1

10. Zubair Khan ASI P\V,4 appeared and he sUited that on 

17.02.2022, he was 'on puti-olling/gashl in Mobile-II, 
where, he received infoiTnation froih the ))o!3C(; station

;

!

4
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4 * 'ihal a dead body liaa been broughi to ATH Hospilai. On 

the said information he rushed to die hospital where the,' 
complainant Mst. Sumairu Bibi reported the niatter.and 

• was reduced into Mwasila Ex.PW.4/! by him. 
Whereafter,' obtained her signatures on the said 

Mwasila and that of verifier namely, Shafquc Alias

(Banka). The dead body along with injur)' shed
. .1 •

• £x.PW.4/2 and inquest report Ex.PW.4/3 were,also 

prepared by him and handed over to Samiullah FC for 

PM exitininalion. The Murasila was sent to the police 

station for the registration of the case through constable 

Gul Rahman FC No. 45.

. ''V

Co^cacc^ ^<}Z-Scf5 9S96S9Z

11. Abdul Wahid Afo/ia/r/r Malkhana, PW5 appeared and 

stated Ihat^on 22.02.2002 he Handed over parcels of llie 

instant case along with parcels of other cases to , 
constable Shah Nawaz for transmitting, the same to the 

, FSL Peshawar vide Road Certificate receipt N.o: 76/21. 
77/21 and 78/21..Thc said constable returned ihe road

certificate bearing No. 76/21 after delivering the .parcel 

in FSL Peshawar but due to the close of Laboratoiy of 

Khybcr Medical College, returned die receipt Noi 77/21 

and 78/2i. However, on 24,02.2022,.he 'again sent tltc 

, parcel pf receipt No. .78/21 through- constable Shah 

Nawaz ,to KMC Peshawar. On return lie-handed over
the receipt along, with parcel No.4 the sealed parcel to
him in the PS. He is also the marginal witness of the

12X.PW.I/4 vide which the lO look into

mms
A

3 • 2023 .'.1

recovery memo
possession one big jar having 5 small bottles coritainhig 

liver, small intestine, stomach, spent bullet/lead and 

also sent to the FSL vide receipt No.¥ heait, which were
After taking the small bottle from the big jar, 

laboratory handed over the said jar to the constable who

.
.

• 78/21

'0
I:

Hi3:.-
t
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oroughrihe same lo the police station which was scaled . 

itUo parcel No.S-A by affixing monogram of FA. The 

recoyei'y. memo is correct and correctly bears his. 

signature. That he also sent Parcel No.3-A to ihc FSL 

on 25.02.2022 vide, receipt No. 79/21. The JO also
i ‘

recorded, his slaierncnt. lOn 28.02.2022, he also sent

r
f

■

!

. -

pared No.4 and 6 to the I'SL vide receipt No'. 80/21 

through" constable Jehan^ieb FC No.55, which is 

Ex:PW.5/l. ' On 30.11.2022' this PW was again •
examined and he produced original register No. 19

!.

(Wiff 9S9<5S98 whcrein.;entries were made at serial No. 1748 in respect 

of the case property which is Ex.PW.S/A., ’ '
:

i
idakcem. K.han ASI appeared as P\V.6 who registered

the present Fill Ex.PW.6/l on receipt of Murasila
i

which correctly bears his .signature.

I

1

Dr. .Mohammad Ejaz-ul-Haq, ATH Hospital, PV7-7 

Slated that: ,

On 17102.2022 at 08,15 PM, He examined the dead 

body of the deceased Dildar alias Papu son of 

Muhammad Rafique brought by police. The dead body 

was identified by Muhammad Shafique and .Mohsin 

. Ali. On examination, he found Uic following; - . 

EXTERNAL APPEARANCE: -
|>

i
l.i

Middle-.'aged man lying on PM table with.;, supine 

positiqii; wearing light grey colour Shalwar Qainis and 

while color vest; rigor mortis developed mildly ;

WOUNDS:- -
1. Entry wound on right posterior comparimeni of .ann 

wiih,inverted edges and inverted margins.

2. Exit would-on right posterior compartment of 

with .averted margins.

j

arm

: t

[j 1
•f <

i
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- -3-. Enlry would right lower and lateral border of
, i ' ■ . ■

• scapula near axilla. No exit wound.

GRAUIUM AND SPINAL CORD
No Fracture seen.

THORAX;-
• I

All intact.
Pericardiuio and heart. Specimen sent for i-SL

ABDOMEN- ^
Intact1. Walls

2. Peritoneum:intact .
3. Mouth,'phar>'nx and esophagus Intact. 

Intact4. Diaphrgrrj;
5. Stom&ch and its contents. Stomach contents' sent to

FSL

6. Pancreas;
.7. Small intestine and their contents:" Samples sent for

Intact

FSL ...
. ^8. Large intestine and their contents. Fecal inalerial 

present, .
9. Liver. Sample sent for FSL 

Intact. •
Intact

Intact • .

was

10.Spleen:-
■ .11 .Kidneys;

■ I2.Bladdar:-
. • 13.0rgans of generation extcrmil and hiicmal. Intact

2U3 Ml l^r.l:.F.S.BONIiS. JOINTS
and right shoulder lower and lateralInjury, to right arm 

border scapula near axilla,
NilDisease of defonnity :
NilFracture;- , 

Dislocation:

I

Nil

. 1

(
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REMARKS
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Firearm injury bin - iiol grievous or life • threateningK
I';

V
condition. Suspected cause of death is other, than fireunTi 

injury; Final report of death will be furnished after'FSL 

report. Sample were taken and'handed over to police for 

FSL analysis in the following manner.

Liver
.Small intestine^

Stomach contents

;
/

?■

51 V

l| h’<•

Bottle No. 1 

BoUlc':No.2
'I! 1!

Bottle No.3 

Bottle No.4 Bullet

■^9^S‘?5 9S96S9S

:
Bottle No.5 heart.t.

PROBABLE TIME THAT ELAPSED> •
T

.Between injury.and death;- .30 to 45 minutes approximate. 

Death ond.Postmoticm:-
/

,02 to'03 hour appro.Kii'iiate.

U;v
; Post rnoi'lem report,along with clothes of die deceased was 

handed over to dtc police. Has seen his postmurtein, report 

,Ex PM which is in his handwriting, correct and corrcclly 

bears.his signature which is.Ex.PW.7/1
if ItWV.

i
Constable Gul .Rehnian FC No, 45 PW-y, suited' that hc- 

was on .gasht along 'vvith Zubair ASt.i On receiving, 
information, he alongwith Zubair Khan ASl, went to 

ATH,, Vvhe'fe, Zubair Xhan. ASI drafted'the-report of llie.i 

i complain.anl.iivlhe shape of Murasila which wasihanded' 

|'.‘over to him' for taking the same to the police'station for the'

-t; sake of registralioivof the case..

%
S:i

i;• ;
■p

li
j■ 3 0 JArL®

1.5. ,

1 H •

Saeed Alimad IBG, PW-?, stated that on .19.02:2022 alter 

!, receiving DSB from ATH Hospital by the, 10, he obtained 

.pictures from the said USB through private computer and

'v

.!
t.

sealed the same into parcel No.3 by .affi.xing monogram of 

FA ail'd prepared' the recovery m.cnio' Ex.PW.9/-l in his
' i

v
;

. |-U'-.1

.it:
i : «.*

I
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presence and in the presence of marginal witnesses. On ,. 

26.02.2022, the accused facing trial disclosed that they 

rightly point out their prcseiiec at the .spot. Firstly, accused 

Wniqas made poinlutioii of Ihc place of occurrence and 

place of the deceased and ihc 10 made entry with red inlc, 

the' poinlation memo is Ex.PW.9/2, Titcrcallcr, accused 

Masood Anwar made pointation vide polntation
Ex.R\V.9/3.The accused Abdul Qadeer also .made ^
poinlalion oF the place of the accused, deceased and eye

witness Waqas. Younas vide pointation memo En.PW.9/4.
<

Accused-Muhammad Imran also pointed out. the place of
Carry Van "No. 2259-LHD and owned ihc carry van, in this

j

respect the 10 also made addition in site plan with red ink. 

The pointation memo is Ex.PW.9/5. . i

<)}
cun

t:• S
fi

i- .

; -
memo

i'

I

J

i

Constable Jehanzeb FC No.55 PW-IO, stated that-on 

19.02.2022, after receiving the USB from ATH Hospital 

by the 10 and obtaining picture from the said USB, scaled 

the-same in to parcel No.3 Ex.P.l by affixing monogram 

.ofEA and prepared the recovery memo Ex.PW.9/1 in his 

presence and other marginal witness which correctly bears 

his-signature. On 26.02.2022, during interrogation in the 

presence of DSP and SHO, accused Waqas disclosed that 

he'is ready to hand over 30 bore pistol through which he 

made firing Upon the. deceased and also pointed oufthc 

pistol 9'MM of the deceased which was with the deceased. 

On this informalion the accused led the police paity to the 

barracks of constables and opened corrugate box which 

.was lying on Northern side of his cot and handed over 9- 

MM pistol and 30 bore pistol. The 30 bore pistol belonged
to the accused Waqas.. The 9-MM pistol was loaded with 6

! -
live rounds and it bears tlie.No. T-6‘172-12-A]’, 00240. The

i i'
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same> was .sealed -into parcel .No.4 Ex.P'.2-, The six live ^ 

rounds were also scaled into parcel,No. 5 Ex.P.3. The 30 

bore pistol was also sealed into parcel No.(5 Ex.-P.4. The 10 

also prepared the' recovery memo Ex.PVV,.1.0/l which 

correctly- bears his, signature and_ that .of coTioarginal 

iOii', 26.02'.'2022 the accused -M.usawar Anwdr

Hi

(

wiihess
disclosed''in,'the-presence ipT DSP and SHO that lie; can 

hantJ over' the mobile/cellular phone belonging'to- the 

4 deceased which was kepl.ih the barrack of constables. And 

■ on ihc poi.iiiation pf the accused the iO-recovered the said

r
i\
i|

.4
/i|

i-l IfiSV

i ■ ihiobile pjione;'from',the front pocket; of Umform shirt 

s vyhich was ’hangedi piT the western wall of the barrack.;.Thc;

; same mobile was dual isijm Jhe same was sealed.:in'to 

. parcel No.7 Ex.P.5 and prepared the' recovery memo 

■ Ex'.PWUO/X'whicli.also bcar.s'his signature. Oh;23-.02.2022 

the /Wo7iamr-of the PS handed over to^ him-UVe parccls' of 

the case 'in hand .for 'taking the same to the FSL vide. 

- receipt. No-. 80/21 already exhibited Ex.PW.5/1. The 10 

also recorded his statement.-

S'

'Vi

I

II
i

17. Sumaira Bi.bk P-W-U, cdfnp.iaihaht of th'e, case a]3pcared 

and- she reiierated .the same facts as •mehlioiicd by her '.In 

■ her' report arid 'suiVcriicnl recorded under- Section 164 

Cr.P.C I ■

I

18. .Mohsin Aii,, PW4l2 who identified the dead body- of the 

deceased namelv.,pilar- alias Papu. The' 10, prepared, the- 

receipt, of tlte ;dead body and look his signaiurcand .other 

witnesses which is Ex,P-W,12/l.

S'!ij.

li

I

; 1 .1 i'

|!

19.' Waq'as Xouhas-.PW-n, appeared, and-staled that
\ present iinihis'house ut tlic..limc falling between Maghreb

,'-he .was
j!■

■;

t ■

I'V
1

r
' -i..*■ ■t

^1'i:
i .'i.
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ill and hha and heard noise of two ftre shots on which lie ..* 

inslantly came out fiom his house. He saw a pci-soivwas.' 
running a head towards Upper Street and two persons.!

f

followed him to that street. He also followed them to see
who they are. When he reached there, the person wiio'

running a head was lying in unconscious condition in the

corner of vacant plot. The persons who were chasing him

were also standing there with him. He inquired about their

identiiy and they disclo.-icd that they arc government 
* , * * ' ' • * 

scfvanls. After some lime police constables w!io was

wearing police uniform came there and lie left the spot. On

'was
v|

5
)

1

i

tW 
9s^S9S the next day of occurrence 10 came to the spot and on his 

■ pointation' prepared the site plan Ex.PW.13/1 His 

statement was also recorded by the 10.

slated that, after theMulmnimad Farooq.i PW-14,
■' I

registration of the case invcstiguiion was handed over to 

'him. He recorded die sUttcmeni of Gohar Ralunan FG No. 

45 under Section ,161 Cr.P.C. He visited the ATH Hospital

Abbottabad on 18.02.2022, where constable Sami-Ullali 

FC No. 65o.produced him the PM report of the deceased, 

and' o,nc big'.plastic bag in sealed condition having five 

small sealed-, boxes' containing liver, small inieslinc, , 

stomach, bullet and heart. These articles were taken out by

;lhc doctor-from the dead body of the deceased at ihcairnc.

The said constable ' alsoof postmortem examination, 
produced the- blood, stained, garments of the deceased to 

him. The PM- report was placed on file while the big box
■

was sealed in. to^parccl No.I for FSL,. The clothes ot the 

deceased were also sealed hi to parcel No.2 Ex.P.6. He

prepared the recover)' memo Ex.-l^W.3/.l in the presence of 

marginal witnesses.'He also applied to .the Pircctor AlH
!■

. ..j /
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Is Abboltabad -for providing ihc CCrV Footage'from' 18.00"
■-?•■

lioursito' 1S»15, hours for clarification as to.'whb brought the 

-deceased. Dildar alias- Papu.

■t

jI The application is
f Ex.PW. 1;4/1. On the said day, lie visited Jhangi'Qazian and

)

Jhangi. Syedan- to inquire -about- the occuiTencc and
'i-

Vl
‘ unknown accused whcic. he- camc' to know that the

'occurrence look place af Iambi; Dh'eri and on mtildng
•query at Liimbi .Dhcri hexame.to Icnow that’Waqas Younas 

•was.the eye witness of the 'Occurrence'. He .summoned luin 

who conic to the-spot.;ahd on his pointalion.prepared the 

site plan Ex.P'W.13/1. The Hospital-auihontics provided 

him the GCTV' footage in USB whcrefroin^ jie developed 

the pictures and placed :oh file -which are' five' .(05) in-, 

rnumber as-’Ex.PW.I4/2. The USB' waS’'sealed'4nio parcel; 

,No.3 Ek;P.I and prepared ihc:recovei7- 'nemo £x.P-W-.'?/i 
in die presence of.'.niarginal witnesses. Vide application

... ■ . . i

;Ex.PVV.i '4/4 and Ex.PW.14/5 .he applied for obtaining lire: 
CDR of . the, .accused and that of the ;dccca.scd. Onr ... '
•20.02.2022 from. CCty footage it .has conic into iiis 

*
knowledge .that ilVe occurrence has been commilted by the,
.accused :racing: trials Who are ail p.olicc ol’ficiai:;. i 

•discussed the matter, w'ilh.-the high, tips and'-complainant 
party was summoned for 22.02.2022 '.and the- matter was
brought ilnlo Uiiiir noljcc. The complainant party went •to
■-< f

the, spot and. met . the eye witness ;and aRer getting
satisfaction on .24.02.2022,.he .recorded the staterhenf.dT
the. complainant, Shafique-alias Banka and Aniratem Bib'i' 

- .’ .... ^ 
(mother.of the. deceased) under' Section .161 .Cr.P.C and'on
.•24.p2'.2P,22,.ihei'r--statements were recorded .under .Section
164 Cr.P.G . vide his application. Ex.PW. 1.4/6; On

■24.02d20'22' Parcel No.l conialhing .one big 'size .box 'in
sealed condition was sent 'by -the doctor which also

containing. small boxes' 'having liyer, sjnall intestine,

•1

I

:
.

AWc
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stomach, spent bullet and heart vvhich were sent to the rSL 

vide receipt No. 78/21 to KMC, out of wliich parcel No.4 ' ^

was returned by llic KMC while the remaining were 

retained. The said parcel was handed over to him and 

again sealed into parcel No.3-A Ex.T.7 and prepared the

recovery memo Ex.PW.1/4. Vide application Ex.PW.,14/7
he.applied to the DPO Abboiiabad for grant of permission 

fordhe arrest of the accused facing trial being the police 

officicls. On 24.02.2022 he vide his application
Ex.PW.14/8 issued Parwana for nomination of the accused 

in the case in hand. He arrested Ute accused and issued the 

card of arrest as Ex.PW.14/9 to Ex.PW.H/l2. Vide

j's,.

I

; ;■

\

^6.00^^92 5^5 95<?6SfS

application. Ex.PW.14/13 lie obtained three (03) clays 

police custody of the accused from the court. During 

ihvcsligation of tlie ease, the accused jV/aqas Alunad 

disclosed that, the pis.tol 30 bore which he used for the 

commission : of the offence and pistol 9-MM of tlie 

deceased was ,lying in the tin box in constables’ ban'acjc. 

The accused, led die police party to tlic said barracks and 

on his pointation the pistol 9-MM and 30 bore pistol were 

recovered, The pistol 30 bore belongs to the accused while.

9-MM pistol of the deceased was contained six (06) live 

rounds. The said 09-^MM pistol was sealed into parcel 
No.4 Ex.P2 while rounds were sealed into parcel No,5. 
The pistol 30 bore was also taken into possession and 

sealed into parcel No.G Ex.P.4. In this regard he prepared
Ex.Pw.14/14 in the presence of7(123

ij

the recovery memo

marginal witnesses.. During interrogation of the accused
£• Musawar Anwar he disclosed that the mobile phone which

was in possession of the deceased al the time ol occurrence 

■ was-with him and lying in his official shirt in barrack, of
Uie constable and thus on his pointation the same
fccovered from the front pocket of the shirt, of the accused.

*V '

was

, *
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On inspecting mobile, the same was Ibiind o be-OPPO ^

^
mobile black in colovir having IMEl 8(53235041512557 

and IME 8i532'35041512540. The said mobile was dual 
SIM. The sam'c was sealed in to parcel 140.7 Ex.P.5 and

,prepared ihe recovery memo lEx.PW.14/15. The accused 

facing (rial , also led the police party to the place of 

occurrence and made poiiuation of the place of occunence

.which was found in accordance with already prepared site

plan. ■ The note with red ink on the site plan is 
' ' *1 

Ex.PW.14/16. During interrogation the accused Imran

disclosed that the Suzuki bearing No. LED-2259, which
was used in the commission of Utc offence, is his

. ownership. That all the four accused made i>oiiilalion of

the spot of occurrence turn by turn and they have pointed
■ out their points, and liiat of the deceased and in this respect
poinlaiion memos were prepared in the presence of 

marginal witnesses. The same were already exhibited. The 

accused Imran also pointed out the place of parking of the 

Suzuki Carry No LED-2259 which was . shown in point 

No.A, with red ink, On the same date on' the pointation of 

the accused Imran the Suzuki Carry was also recovered 

from his house and in this respect the . recovery memo 

.Ex.PW.2/1 wa.s prepared in the presence of. marginal 
witnesses'. . The 10 also added Section 15-AA in the case

;

:

t,

.C

•V
■’c ■ ■

i *

I

■ . A cAC

V\'4-S

t

\

a i/’•p. --v
^:in hand vide Ex.PW.14/17. Vide application Ex.PW.14/18 

to Ex. 14/21 he sent the parcels of tltc instant case for . 
examination to the laboratoiy. He also placed on file the 

CDR report Ex.PW. 14/22. According to the CDR tlic 

presence of the accused was found at the place and time of

i
)|

occurrence. The report of FSL in respect of 09.MM pistol
file as Ex.PW:14/23and 30 pistol was also placed on 

which arc reported to be in proper working conditi,on.Thc

report Ex.PW. 14/24 in respect of one meiiiliie piece is also
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placed on file; The report of FSL Ex.PW.14/25 is also
placed on Hie which is in positive for human iplood. Report 

of KMC regarding liver, small intestine,'stomach and heart 
is also placed on file as Ex,PW.l4/26, and has been 

reported to be negative for poisons/drugs. The copy of the

0 , ^

I

registration book in respect of the Suzuku Cany was also 

produced to the 10 by accused Imran which Is Marked-A.

Vide, application

\

/
Copy of register 19 is Ex.PW.14/27,

Ex.P W. 14/28 he sent parcel No.4 and 6 to the laboratoiy in 

respect of workable condition or not.

■ c;v.c
Vide application 

Ex.PW.14/29 lie produced the accused before the court fori

recording their confessional statements which was refused 

and were sent'to judicial lockup.' List of LRs of the 

deceased is Ex.PW, 14/30. He also attested receipts of 

delivering dead body Ex.PW.12/1. He also recorded 

statements of the PWs under Section 161 Cr.P.C. The 10

also placed on file different DDs including the.DDs ofthe
’* i . '

departure ofthe accused facing trial from the police station 

arc £x.PW.14/31 to Ex.PW. 14/53. After completion of 

investigation handed over the case file to the SHO for 

submission of'cha//an against the accused facing trial. •
'■ V. ■

Tahir Saleem SHO, PW-15, submitted complete challan' 

Ex.PW.51/1 against the accused which correctly bears his 

signatures.

21...w*

,*«

Remaining alf'PWs were abandoned by AFP for the ^lalc
*, * . 4 * i

and private counsel for the complainant.
22.

. '

4
>
\

23> After completion of prosecution evidence, the accused

examined under section 342 Cr.P.C, vvhercin, they
'

professed innocence and ftilsc implication, however,'they

\
i'

( were
\

,)

■2

■( j ' ' •
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j(w'f did not opt to be examined on Oatb under seclion 3'4D (2) - 

Cr.P.C, neiiher wisl^d lo produce .evidence in ihcir

t defence. . ‘ ;

.«

?

'

24. Arguments'.of Learned Counsel were heard, and file
perused wiih iheir valuable assistance.

f
ii

25. Tale manifested in prosecution version as unleashed in the 

report of complainant (PW-11) that her husband Dilciar
I

alias Papu on the eventful evening had left the house ,in 

pursuit lo purchase fruits and milk for children. Motivated 

by conscience and enmities, he also took along his 09-MM 

pistol for .his protection. After some time when the

/ '

......

i ;;

|:omplainanl made a contact on the mobile phoncyof her 

husband, she was informed by someone titat due to heart
•it !I

attack her husband is lying in ATH Hophal, upon which 

she rushed, to, the hospital witli her brother in law namely 

Shuficiue wliere he found her husband lying dead having 

Hre arm injury on his person. Being unaware wiUi the 

mode and manner of occurrence,, she initially charged no 

one ill her report for the commissioji of the offence.. 

However, inter she recorded her statement under S.eciion 

164 Cr.P.C,Where charged the accused facing trial fur the 

commission of the offence on.her being satisfied. \
i

« '

After the registration of the case, investigation of the case 

was handed over to Muhammad Farooq Oil (PW.14). As
I

per the FIR the accused were unknown and .there was no 

eye witness of the occuircnce, therefore, at first instant the 

10 went lo the Hospital where tlie dead body was- brought

■for postmortem examination. The person and the vehicle in
' * ''1 ' • .

Which the dead body was brought to die hospital was not

■~sss«
I

i
'

V. . I
i

ki'
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available in ihe-hospital therefore, the 10 first approached "■ 

to the Director of the Hospital for obtaining the footage of 

CCTV camera for confirmation of the fact that who 

brought the dead body to the hospital. Besides Ihis the 10 

also inquired about the occuiTence in the vicinity of the 

area where the’occurrencc took plaec. Eventually^ he learnt 
that'the occuiTence look place at Lambi Dheri and was also 

witnessed.by'-'ohe Waqas.Younas. The 10 summoned .the 

said eye witness.of the occuiTence and on his pointailon he' 
prepared the site plan of tlte place of occurrence. After
obtaining the CCTV footage from the Hospital in DSB and

■ !

deWloping the said photos from USB, lO .reaphcd to tui
■ ( ' I '

insurmountable conclusion that the pccurrcnce has been 

co'mmitted by''the accused facing trials, who are police 

officials. Thus' in furtherance of his convi.ction and belief 

. developed in view of evidence that had surfaced in' the 

course of investigation, he after brining all the details on 

record and to the.notice of complainant parly and his 1-ligh 

booked the accused facing trials in the instant ?TR, 

arrested them in the case at hand while complainant also 

gelling satisfaction, charged all the accused named above 

for Ute commission of.ofFencc.

S-

;

!

i

f

'

e.

n■i)

ups,

Bird eye vieW of events as detailed above would certainly 

hake a prudent mind towards a case , based on 

'circumstantial evidence. Wherefrom, during the course of

'investigation-..it also came to the fore that at the relevant 
’ time, the occurrence was also witnessed by an eye witness.
namely, Waqhs Younas (PW.IS). However, said whacss

firing at the deceased Dildar 

fire.shots, deceased

:

1

’ also did not sec anyone 

(Alias) Pappu CKccpl for hearing tlic
head and followed by two individuals and lately,running a

^ found said deceased lying in a plol in an upper street while
; '

•;
.1'

• T • i

. ; .
■(

■>,
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two persons standing by the. said, who discipsed their 

identity to be .Government Servants on query of witness

and leavirig'the crime scene upon noljciag an individual iit
uniform.- Except Uiis slatcmen'g tlicre is no other .direct 

..evidence against- the .accused facing trails and the whole

. :c'ase of Uie'prosecuiionjs-hovering around .die. facts based'
{ bn circumstances’-ihat had sprouted immediately ’aftciVihc.

..occurrence. Si.nce, (here is rio-^second opinion to. die.‘fact 
that Dildar (Alias). Pappu died onrdjc. eycnlful day and was 

.found lying bn stretcher of Ayub. 'Teaching l-ibspitaf

. Abbottabad'.^
t'.. '’'-i.

i ■ ... . . '

'In Griinjnal. ,Administration -bf-.’Juslice once'ithc, matter
•fortifies ‘upon circum.siantial eyideiice,- .die. yardstick'.of'
.jjrobabilidcs, ils.intrinsic wofilvand'animus of witness has'

;to> be 'Synchronized. Since, it is alv/ays the. .burden of
■prosecution tb'provc its 'case'.beyond; reasonable'doubts on

..the 'basis of legally.accepted,-.evidence. Resullanll-y-ycach
;and every circumstance from ilVc.stagc of.its^inTancy-.dli its
jmal. conclusion' shall be 'So consistent while -forming' a;

»
bhaih .liiat shallibc continued in sliapc, evciyring ofit .lijust; 

/. ;attach the blherimagneti.cally to dfa'w a cbhcl'usioh vrith thc. 
eprpus, delict at initial and. neck of.accused at die- last.. 

-.'While keeping in- view the principle .as above, ’'tlierei 
• Lordsliips .in the .Chambers of August' Apex -Court of 

Takistan'while considering similar' facts in .Case tided 

Azeem Khim and AiwiUer Vs Muiahid Khan-and.oihpys
■reported in 2016 SCMR 274. 2015 SCMR 155 framed die 

- follotyi.rig guidelines for appreciation of evidence in sucii 

like cases;
/. Whether the, cifcuimtdnccs from: whiejt the 

cdsiclusion is.io be drawn are futly established. The

1

5

!
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drcumsUiiices concerned must or siwnUl mul not 
way be edablislied;

I
t

r. •;

ii. Whether ihe facts so established is consistent only- 

with (he hypothesis of (he guilt of the accused, (hat 
is to say, they^should not he explainable on any 

other hypothesis except that the accused is guilty;
Hi. Whether (he circiumfances are of conclusive 

nature and tendency;
iv. Whether the . same exclude every possible 

hypothesis except the one to be proved; , i

V. Whether, there is a chain of evidence so complete 

as not to leave any reasonable ground for.^ the 

conclusion consistent with the innocence of the 

accused and must show that in all liumah 

probability the act must have been done by (he 

accused, and

vi. Whether (he chain is connected and the difjerent 
piece of circumstantial evkhice had made one 

chain, an unbroken bite where one end of it 
touched (he crime and other neck oj (he accused.

: c^C■Si
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Bearing ibe said coniours at ihc foj'C, once,the case oi 
prosecution as propounded is analyzed, it raihcr

indispcnsible for prosecution to establish presence ot 
eye witness Waqas Younas (PW.l 3) on the crimoisccne

natural probabilities. Notwithstanding, the

■ damage caused to Uie other party, as loss should not be 

' a touchstone for believing or not believing evidence 

while.basic test:For the-court is the intrinsic value or

wonhy.siaiemenl-AdmiUcdly, Waqas Younas is not the 

interested: witness of the case

29.

in the

’I'i
1

because neither he is 

ill will could berelated to any of the party nor any
Iccoi-d to foist and concoct a stoiy of

I;

brought on
A
t■;>

C
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roccurrence, rather he is totally an independent. jWrson. 
In his' examination in chief, he has 'admiUed that on 

hearing ..the fire shot he carne out from his house .and.

.‘W;

saw a person is running ahead towards Upper Street and
^ I

two persons 'followed him. That.he also followed itlicm 

and when'reached there, he saw that a person running 

V ahead'Was lying at tlie'spot in unconscious condition 

. and the persons chasing him were standing, there witli 
him. On inquiry they disdosed their identity to be. 
go.vemrp'ent. servant,.-In the meanwhile anotiier poHce 

constable came there after sprite lime whereupon the 

witness left.thc'crime scene, it, was on .the ncxi-ddy that' 
hci pointed .put the place of occurrence , to'the 10. This 

PW was.cross examined'by the defense counsel and he 

was only;.cross examined on the point;-that there was 

.d.ark and he could not identify the idchthy. But the ino'st,. 
important aspect is that this PW.13 has frankly admitted, 
that the site’.plan svas prepared at his instmice by the iO, 
however, the learned defense counsel has n.oi cross 

examined/ rebutted,this version of the. said eye witnesSi 
Which’cieurly indicate the fact,of'his -presence'at the 

spot. PW.1,3 has'given the points, to the,-deceased, und 

accused, in .the: manner on which he-'saw them. All llic 

accuse.d (luring interrogation of tlic crise Iccj tlie police

i

9596S9!

it•}

I

I>11 ^V'

party -to "the place of occuri'cncc. and they also .made 

poihtation in the, line of site map made at the insiancc'of 

eye witness Waqas'Younas (PW-1-3), At that'time all 

the accused have confirmed the points- which .were
! f . _ * ; i

given'to them, by the eye wkhess 'WaqASi Younas. 
.Besides, the time: and'place o.f occurrence .was disci left- 
un-rebuil^' while'.excluding ppsoibillty 'regarding 

hypothesis that eye witness was not present at: the spot 

at the relevant time. Thus, ‘his presence stands proved.

«
3 ■
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Moreover, this PV/ bcini^ a natural witness has deposed ^ 

the fact which he ha^ seen at the relevant lime and the 

same could'not be ^iiscarded on the mere poiiiUi of
darkness and identity of the accused.

/

\
i

30. The oiher';.Ieg of circumstances that lead to establish 

hypothesis-consistent with the guilt of accused is that 
all the accusediarc police officials. To which effect the 

first and foremost factum that has been brought on
' .i ' ■ .

record by the 10 is the absence of accused ,from their, 
official duties in the shape of daily dairies 'of their 

departure ..from the police station. On the relevant, day 

the accused Imran (Wireless operator.) left the'police
f '■ I ,(

station at 16.30 hour on the pretext of persona! work at 

Bazar Abboitabad. The entry in regard was made in(DD 

No.21 dated 17.02.2022 Ex.PW.[':l/33. On the same day 

the accused Musawar and Waqas also left the ,police 

station at .about 16;45 hours for the puipose of taking 

lea at complex Hospital. En.117 in this respect is 

available.in DD No. 23 dated 17.02.2022 Ex.PW.i 4/32.
' This shows that at the relevant day and lime the three

','v . .1
accused namely Imran. Waqas and Musawar iefl' the 

police station for flimsy reasons and such abscnce lroni 
Ihcir duly ,lead to the ultimate conclusion that they had 

'hatched a-''plan jointly for the commissioiyof. the 

^ offence. U is alsolevident from DD No.34 Ex.PW.H/34 

nhat the above named accused returned to the police 

station-a^about 22.00 hours i.e., after the commission 

. of the 'o'ffehce. As per the post .mortem rcpoit 
: i:jt.pw.7/T the time between death and post mortem of 

' deceased--bildar is aboui 2 to 3 hours approximately. . 
■ The time'drdeaili'aspcrtlieflR is given 1930.hQn!'. All

’• these factV show that during the above pcridcl the

Sdidaa 'J/tuidrMtrBf-'TT
i\
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accused 'facing trial were not on duty rather tltey 

out of police station.
were '

m

is?- ■/ I
I

Though.;it Is established on record that the aocused 

facing trial namely Imran, Waqas and Musawar 

^ not present on their respective duties rather they, were 

away from the jpolice station during the time of

3!i

•were

■■55^
5

:c occurrence, then the question that would poke a prudent 
mind that what \yerc their locations during the .time of 

their absence from the police station? To-answer this 

question, the 10 collected the CDR Data of the accused • 
facing trial Ex.PW. 14/22 (14 sheets) which rencct the 

presence of the accused facing trial at the spofalong 

with the deceased. There is no denial of the fad that the 

10 has not confinned the SIM number from the 

concerned company, that in whose name the" said 

numbers are registered, but at the same time it is .also 

not denied by thp accused facing trial that the numbers 

as mentioned in the CDR DATA were- not-in llicir use .
V ( , . • n .

- or do not belong to them. Said certainly also lead lo an 

un-rcbuttabie;conciusion lo establish the.presence of the 

accused-facing trial on the crime scene at the relevant

a' is *r.,

f

<1

t
I'

r
. lime.

37..: ■ it is also 'worth highlighting, that ilte dead body ’of the
deceased was shifted to tlie Hospital by the accused in

■ . !

Suzuki Carry Van bearing No. LED-2259. The said
- ' ‘1

Suzuki Carry belongs lo the accused Imran which was
■ r-- , ' i:,:-■

also recovered by the local police on his jroiniatioh and
^ hv '

the registration,book, of the vehicle was also produced
hi *, . ‘

to the 10 by the accused Imran. The 10 of the case
■ J ■ ' .

collected, CCTV footage froin the Hospital, the
. ■ -' ' ' n ;

photograph of the same is available on the case Tde as

J.
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Ex.PW.I4y2,^ (4 in_ number). The perusal of the 

photograph clearly indicate that the dead body 

brought by the police officials in Suzuki Cariy and then 

it was' shifled to stretcher, and took the dead bbdy 

inside the Hospital.^ The astonishing fact of the'

/'•••
v.'as*

ease is
j

t that when die dead body was brought to the hospital by 

the accused Jrom the place of occurrence') they bejng

police officials, were under' CJAC an obligation by default to 

report the matter either to police station or their officer 

commanding i.e., SHO PS Mirpur in respect of the

I

commission of a cognizable offence of murder within 

the meaning, of Section 154 of the Cr.P.C that, they had

found a dead body and have evacuated the same to the
( Hospital., Instead, they Iclt the dead body abandoned 

Stealthy and vanquished. Such an act of a police official 

who is also duty bound by virtue of his post to keep 

peace and harmony in the society, would cogently 

establish his guilt. Thus, the shifting of che.dead body 

of the deceased to the hospital, wliich fact got support 

from the CCTV footage, by itself is sufficient to prove 

the presence of the accused facing trial at the spot of 

occurrence. If for the sack of arguments it is presurhed 

that the accused were not present at the spot, then'how 

they received information regarding the occurrence,
i ■ ' *
how they went to the spot and shifted the dead body of 

the deceased’ to the police station. No explanation to 

answer said questions are available in the folds of 

instant file/record. Said has rather woven a chain of 

evidence not leaving any reasonable ground foi' Ute 

conclusion consistent with the innocence of the accused 

Facing trials’and adversely show all human probability 

that accused are responsible for the murder of decea'sed

'i
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33i It is alsp the case of the prosecution, that at the lime of
, ' * . ■

occurrence, ihe deceased

;

r It

«s'vwas carrying a pislol^Of 09-
MM bore and a mobile phone. During interrogaiion;of 

the accused Waqas Ahmad, he informed the 10 

regardinghhe presence of the 09-MM PIsiol wiih -him in

the barrack of cohsUiblc. Ihus, on his poinlation (he 10 

recovered the said Pistol 69-MM from corrugated tinf

: box of the accused lying in the constable barrack. The 
■*-^ZS45^f6m t'

1 ^4

recovery of/ the, pistol mentioned above from the 

possession of the accused Wuqas Ahmad shows that 

after the occurrence the said pistol were retained by 

accused. .Waqas Ahmad, which further confirm the

I

:
i .

'

\
, nexus-of the accused with the taclum of crime and 

commission of the offence. It is also on record dial the 

mobile Phone OPOO belonging to the deceased Dildar 

was also recovered from the front pocket of llie accused 

. Musawaf Anwar from his sliirt of Police Unifonn 

his poinlation, hanging in. the Police BaiTack'. The 

presence of die belongings of the deceased, with the 

accused'Waqas Ahmad and Musawai' Anwar, further 

. complete'the chain of circumstantial evidence towards 

(he commission of .the offence, by the accused facing
trial.

;'

5 on

r.
I
!

It is also on record that the 10 during inieiTogation of 

the ease, on the poinlation of the accused 'Vv'^aqas

Ahmad,'recovered one 30 bore pistol frotn the tin box 

of the accused named, above, iVing in the barrack of 

• police station being used for i vc commission of the 

offence. The said'pistol was sent to the FSL and as per 

the report of iheT-SL Ex.PW.14/23 the same was found 

. In working condition. Thus, tlic, FSL report also 

supporls the version of the prosecution.

5
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35. The icoi'ncd defense counsel mainly stressed qn the 

point that pointation of the accused in the police
eiistody .i5...i[iadmissibie in the evidence and that ihc

police was already in knowledj’c of the place of

occurrenec and had prepared the site plan of tfic place 

of occurrence. Admission under Article ‘lO of-Qanoon- 

c-Shahadat V984 must lead to discovciy of 

facts or result in recovery of property of the case and in

!a

I.some new.

the present ;case, initially no one was charged for the 

commission of the offence by the complainant, 

Therefore, .10'bring on record the real fact the accused
■ ■ f. '

1>

were interrogated by the 10 and on their pointation the
I kt«

recovery of 30 bore pistol being the weapon of 

offence, recovery of 9.MM pistol and mobile phone 

belonging To the deceased was made and these facts 

were not in the knowledge of the 10 rather the same
• t , •

were unearthed on the disclosure of the accused facing 

trial. Conversely, in the circumstances the plea as talccn
I !

above is not worth consideration, lienee, not taken.'

new

f\ t

The crux ; of thc iabovc discussion and evidence . 

produced by the prosecution is that after die registration 

of the case the 10 obtained footage of the persons who 

brought the dead body of the deceased to the Hospital 

and on'the .strenglli of the said footage the accused ■ 

facing trial were nominated as an accused in tire case in 

hand. During interrogation the accused made pointation 

of the place of occurrence one by one and. they have
' . * ■ Iconfirmed their points in the site plan, already prepared 

by the lO on the instance of one Waqas Younas
■ i i ■

.(PW.13). On the pointation of accused Imran Suzuki

<;
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J. Carr)' was • recovered from his liouse{. being his .
ownersliip. The registration card of the vehicle is placed

file'OS; Mark-A which confirms the ownership of

accused Imran. The 30 bore pistol uged for the

■s.

on
f. Is '

commission of the offence was also recovered from the 

: barrack, of the. constable I|:
on the poiniation. of the

accused Waqns Ahmad along with the pistol 9-MM
If /

<^TC belonging to the deceased, The mobile phone of the 

deceased , was also, recovered
I

on the poinuuion of 

accuscd' Musawor, Anwar'from the iVont pocket of hisi! .

police, Uniform. The dea^ body of the deceased 

also taken to the hospital by the accused facing trial 

without informing the police station regarding die 

commission of a cognizable offence. Admilledly the 

accused- facing trials are police officials; but on the

was

r '/

5

T*'*' relevant day they left their duties on delicate reasons 

and returned to .die police station alter the registration 

of the present FIR. Hence, all these facts connect, the
.' j

chain with the deceased which goes to the neck of the 

.. accused facing trial. It is pertinent to mention here that 

four persons were charged for the commission of the 

murder of the deceased, however,, the evidence 

^ ■' produced by the prosecution shows the joint hand of all 

the accused because as stated above that all the accused 

left their duty on the day of occurrence and came to ilic
^ . t,

police station after the registration of the case, which 

fact confirni that the accused fticing trail iiad the

common.intention for the doing of such act and it is
1 , ■ ' ,

also established from evidence collected by the 10 that 

it was pre-arranged plan hatched by the accused facing 

trials in furtherance of common intention and under

1
5'

*r-

■N

!

5.-

/

section 34 PPC accused are. equally responsible'for the 

act done by co-accused with whom accused faci.rig trail
5

;

i
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had sliarccl. common intention. For ready reference 

section 34 P.PC is reproduced herein below; '
e

;

1;

Section 34. When a criminal act is done by several persons, 

in fiirlherahce of common //j/e/!//o;i of all, each of such
person is liable for that act in the same manner, as if it were

done by him alone.

. «
.
i

■

" ',7 •
■ .1 *

•».V

•• • '37.. From'above discussion on various aspect of the
proved that the. accu.scd facing trail have commiilcd the 

murder of the deceased Dildar alias iPapu through firearm 

wedpon, which, fact is duly proved from circumstantial, 
evidence collected by the investigating agency

case,: It iS;

t:

i

In such a circumstance ori the basis of stated piece of evidence
produced by Ute prosecution, this court’has'feachcd-to'the

1 \ >

conclusion that the prosecution has succeeded in bringing 

home ilte guilt of the accused facing trial beyond shadow of
f

doubt and are convicted as under.

'*•
v;

*■

I

■>;
vn

I

39. * 'All tlic accused facing trail namely,

■7
\

i. Waqas Ahmad son of Zulfiqar

ii. Musawar Anwar son of Muhammad Anwar.
1ii. Abdul Qadecr son of Muhammad Yaqoob, and;- 

iv. Muhammad Imran son of Muhammad Bashir;
arc ,miiencc(l to suffer and undergo life 

imprisonment u/s 302(b) PPC as Ta ’zir.

The convicts shall pay Rs,200,000/ each as compensation u/s 

544-A Cr.P.C to- the legal heirs of deceased and; the

compensation shall be recoverable u/s. 544-A (2). Cr.P.C a.s 
arrears of land revenue or owing to want of property of

VV;

t
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convicts, to undergo Six-month SI in case of default by each T 

convict. 4.i
0 \

■J

NOTE. Copy of this judgment is delivered to all tiic convicts 

free-.of cost, against their signatures on the margin of order 

sheet. . .

!

• . 4

That the convict accused Waqas Ahmad is in custody while 

. the remaining convicts are, present on bail before the court, 
therefore, their bail stands recalled and sureties are discharged 

front the liability of bail bonds. They arc taken into custody 

and all the convicts are remanded to Jail to seive-and undergo 

the sentence awarded to them. Benefit of Section 382-B PPG 

is also extended to accused Waqas Ahmad and other convicts. 
Copy' of this judgment be sent to DPP Abboitabad u/s 374

41.

\

'’i-

Ci'.P.C and also to Wortiiy Additional Registrar Honourable 

Peshawar High. Court, Abbf'ttabad Bench. Case property be 

kept intact till tlic decisioo^f appeal. Pile be consigned to the 

record room after necessar)/completioii and compilation! '■ 
Announced Vc.

• '• .‘f 
■ Xri

\

25/0172023

\C Muhammad Umar Ai Farobq Khiui 
Addi: Sessions Judge-Vl 

/Judge MCTC Abboitabad.

C
%

^etnt
. +9^’ S4S 95%^!9?

.4Ceruficati-. . i

Cei:ttncd4hai this judgment consists of 28 pages. Each page has 
^-'been read, st^npd and corrected by me wherever necessary.

^ J \ A \
/

t ■

(y Muliammiid Umar A! l-urooq K1 
Addi; Sessions Judge-Vl 
/Judge tvi'CTC Abbottabad.
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ADDITIONAL ST-SSIQNS TUDGE-Vl/MCTCAlB'BOITAgAQ 

Cflsg F;7e No, of 2022
f

2'i.03.20;d-2
25.01.2023

Date of Institution ■ 
Date of Decision

/

• THE STATE
L

>,•
V E R S U S!!

/
.;)

Waqas Abmed'son of PLuhammad Zulfiqar rcsidcist of
JnhaTar Tchsii and District AbbotUbud.\

(Accused facing {ria.i)

y,5i

CASE 'FIR NO. 16S DATED 17.2.2(122 U/S iS-AA PFC 
POLICE STATION tVlirpur TEHSIL AND DISTRICI'
ABBOTT ABAD.

IUDGMENI

1) lA Accused Waqas Ahmad Itas faced trial in this Court in case DR

■ No. 165 dated 17.2.2022u/s 15 of Anns Act, registered at Police
/* *
Station Mirpnr, Abbothibad.
/

y>•

A’* •■' '■■idf •

5 (-^*7 Pi (■

are tlnat during investigation 

FIR NoA65dated,17.2.2022under Section 302/34

2) . Brief facts of the prosecution

of main case

PPC of re Mirpur,.AI>to/frt6ad,'accused was arrested and uuriog
I

interrogation of the accused, on his pointation the lO ot the case 

recovered one pistol 30 bo'ie ;;vilhout license from the

caseI

I

dri box of!
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the accused facing trial'lying in Ihe barrack of coiistables in the 

police station and thus, Section 15-AA was added .with the 

main case, liowever being a different statute of law; later on

I
clmllnn under Section 15-AA was separated from, the main case 

and submitted before the court for trial of the accused named .
i. i'. ,

above.

, 'I

i
I i!V'.'\

The accused was surhmoned, who was produced in custody, 

proceedings under Section 26d-C Cr.P.C complied vvitlr and 

cliarge was framed against the accused to v.'hich he pleaded not 

guilty and claimed trial. In order to prove its case the

3)

9? Si^

prosecution has produced as many as five (05) .P\Ys and
.i

following is the'gist of their statements: -I

PW-1 Jehanzeb FC No. 55 appeared who stated that 

during interrogation of the main case under Section 

302/34 PPC the, accused facing tidal disclosed that tlie 

pistol 30- bore which was used by him for the 

commission of. the offence is lying in the barrack of 

constable in the police station. On the said information

he along with tlie 10 and other police party in. tliC 

company of the accused went to the said barrack_ and 

from the corrugated box, which was lying on northe.rn 

side' of the cot of the accused facing trial, the accused 

took out the 3.0 bore pistol belonging to him with one 9- 

MM pistbl belonging to the deceased and produceci the 

the 10 which was taken into possession vide

1.

MtlALCOt-

)r?'fl'

same to

- recovery memo Ex.PVV.2/1. The said 30 bore pistol v'vas 

sealed into parcel No;6 bx.P.4. The recovery memo is

0

correct and correctly bears his iignamre.,
• /MG7w?f;/-3
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Hakeem Khaji, ASI examined aa PW-2 who registeied 

tile fJR Ex.PW;2/] against the accused which correctly 

bears his signature. The original of the same is available 

on tile main case file.

riduhammad.Farooq SI/OII appeared as PW,3 and he

also .stated that during interrogation the accused Waejas

disclosed that the pistol 30 bore which was used by him
for the commission of the offcircc is lying in the barrack

of the police station in his corrugated tin- box. 't'he
accused led the police party to the said place and Look

the pistol in question from the box lying beneatli Iris col

and produced .the same to him whicli was taken into
*

possession by him vide recovery memo E;<.PVV,l/2 and 

sealed into parcel No.6. The remainirig statement is 

related to the, main case, therefore, no need to re­
produce here. • •

Abdul Wahid Mohmrir appeared as PW.-l., to. vvlioni the 

'l parcel were handed over and sent the same to the FSL 

/ for examination.

Tahir Saleern SldO e.xamined as PVV-5 who.submiilcd 

complete against the accused.

Prosecution closed its evidence on 30.11.2022 and 

thereafter statement of accused u/s 342 Cr.P.C. was, recorded 

wherein, he again professed innocence and refuted the claarge 

leveled against him. However, he neither wished to be 

examined oh oatli 0/5.340(2) Cr.P.C nor produced evidence in

his defense.'

II.

2
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\!

p

1 have heard. Learned D.y.PP for the state and Learned Counsel 

for accused',and gone tlirough .the record.

5)
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4'6) The prosecution case rests upon the statement of PW4 & PVV-3. 

PW-3 recovered tlie 30 bore pistol on the pointalion of the 

accused facing trial from box lymg in tire barrack beneath liij 

cot. Recovery mejno was preiroj'cd in the presence of ihiugiiutl 

witnesses which is Ex.Pw.l./2. As the recovery of pistol’is nuido 

inside the police station frorn the barrack of the constables..
i \

therefore, exclude the possibility of non-association .of private
. t

PWs. Thd pistol in question was sent to tire FSL and it

reported by the kSL that tire sarirc vvas found in workinv

condition. The same is Ex.PVV's/a. PW.l the marginal'witness

of tlie recovery memo also supported the version of tiis

complainant. He was also cross examined at length but nolhing

favourable could be extracted from his mouth to favor the

1';^ Trance of the accused. The defense has not cross examined tliese

y P\J\^s on the point of recovery, the place of recovery, the time ot 
■ '/

. recovery, hut rather admitted the arrest of the accused and
/ . . . ’

recoveries: The PWs were cross examined but • nolliing 

contrad.ictory has been brought on the record or anything else 

favoring the defense. The rep'ort of FSL also corioborate Ihe
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Statement of PVVs. Thus,, th.c prosecution has proved ihic
(j

recovery of uniicensud pistol cf 30 bore on.tiie jsoinUition of iho 

accused. , therefore, accused namely, Waqas Ahmad is found 

guilt)' for possessing unlicensed pistol and sentenced to suffer 2 

years SI and to pay fine of Rs. 10,000/- failing whicli he wiii

i
uf-

I'

■

'I

i

r
pi
• V\



1
%w

I' K

■

<* *'r\r^
• *» \h/ "‘^W^ ortKb^i

i', r- f
;

'W r .v^. • <lu

U.;i
?

fO« . "'N

;
f ) )suffer further one-nionth 31, Benefit of Section 382-B Gr.P.C. is

4

extended to accused. Butli the sentences shall run concurrently 

i..e punishment awarded u/s 302/34 PPC and tlus case 

I'lK No. 165/17/02/2022, Accused is m custody, be sent to jail- 

alongwiih conviction warrant,to suffer his sci'\lence. .The 30

/ tn
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‘
[ »

Iuncicr j
1
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\ ir
bore pistol in questioia stands confiscated to the state and be 1

-
I

disposed off .as per law after expiry of period of
•s

appeal/fevision. File be consigned to rV^cord room after 

y completion and cdmpil'ntii^n' Sf^Oui K96S9S

^UfVl
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Announced
imnm

Mulusminad Umar Ai Far'ooq Khan 
Addl: Scssiont^ Judge-VI

■/Judge MCTC AbboUabetd.
V:

■3 j
' U'‘
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S9 Certified that this judgment consists ofGS pages. Encli page has been 

read, signe'd and concctcd by me wherever iiccdssary,
’ • / / V
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1;. .
5 7-G, • 0.

.Muhammad Umar Ai Farooq Khan 
Add): Sessions Judge-Vi
/.ludge MCTC AbboUabad
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/'. V/ m 5t OFFICE OF THE1 EGIONAL POUCE'OFFiCER
llAZAl^ REUiON, ABBOTTAiJAD 

•'. ^.0992-93.?0021-22 
«992;S'3ie023

A ■ 1«

>j

J‘.t>)ohazarri©j;maiLco.ra 
/PA DATE:NO: j30 6 0I !

h /06/2024
t

L. To:t.r'. Dssirict Foiice Officer, 
Abbottabad1:

1-
'

Subject:I ' EEMEIMMIM-appea

Memo
'i'iie compeieiit autliority bas ..^xariijr.ed and filed the; departmental 

subti-iUucd by Ex-Constable Waqas Ahmad No. 10^1 

puiiisliment of dismissal from

.'-■Jo. 8H liaicd 07-04-2023, being badly linte barred- ■

The applicant may be i'lformecS accordingly.

*
ajjpcid

or Abbotlnlad uislriet against the
service awarded by District Police Otrkco •FuboUc:Sr'.o. vide OB

•b

•i:
4'

Office Superiiitciidenl 
REGIONAL POLICE OFFICER 

HAZAIEdKEGIOl-i (AF'BOyTTABAB)
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